TARINI INTERNATIONAL LIMITED




Board of Directors

Mr. Vakamulla Chandrashexhar — Managing Director

Mrs. V. Anu Naidu — Whole Time Director
Mr. Parvinder Kumar — Independent Director
Mr. Praneet Kohli — Independent Director

Audit Committee

Mr. Parvinder Kumar — Chairman
Mr. Praneet Kohli — Member
Mr. Vakamulla Chandrashekhar - Member

Shareholder Grievance Committee

Mr. Parvinder Kumar — Chairman
Mr. Praneet Kohli — Member
Mr. Vakamuila Chandrashekhar — Member

Nomination & Remuneration Committee

Mir. Parvinder Kumar — Chairman
Mr Praneet Kohli — Member
Mr. Vakamulla Chandrashekhar — Member

Independent Auditors

M/s. M. Modi & Associates.
Chartered Accountants

114/13, Amritpuri,

East of Kailash, New Delhi — 110065

Bankers

Karur Vysya Bank Ltd
ICIC! Bank Limited

Key Managerial Personnel

a Chandrashekhar - Managing Director
|

Anu Naidu — Whole Time Director
Mr. AHh!':ﬁsh Chand Jain - CFQO
Mr. Amit Arora — Company Secretary & Compiiance Officer

Registered Office

2, 1% Fioer, fl'mr Celony,
LaJoaL Nagar — IV, New Delhi - 110024
Email: tar:n:nn4e.»'sn!.net.in
Website: wy i

VIKHROLI (WEST),
MUMBAI, 400083

Listed in Stock Exchanges

o [ T QRMAT MM t0 . A2 Lo
ooilivay OL"L;‘\ E)'\bllc‘.'iuu, OIVIE P2 udoiiT 1y IL.HIJJ!



YV VYVY

CONTENTS

Notice of Annual General Meeting----------------
Directors Report -
Management Discussion and Analysis---------
Certification by CEO/CFO...ccvcvviviieiienen.
Standalone Financial Statements
Independent Audit Report
Balance Sheet -
Statement of Profit & Loss
Cash Flow Statements
Notes to financial statements
Consolidated Financial Statements
Independent Audit Report
Balance Sheet -~
Statement of Profit & Loss
Cash Flow Statements ---
Notes to financial statements
Statement under Section 129 (3) of Companies Act

Attendance Slip & Proxy Form



TARINI INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(CIN: L74899DL1999P1L.C097993)

Reglstered Office: D-2, 1° Floor, Amar Colony, Lajpat Nagar — [V, New Delhi - 110024

Email: headoffice@tariniinfra.com Website: www.tariniindia.com
Phone: 011-26479995/26285364, Fax: 011-26477296

NOTICE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE TWENTY FIRST ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING OF TARINI INTERNATIONAL LIMITED WILL BE HELD AT D-2, 1°" FLOOR,
AMAR COLONY, LAJPAT NAGAR - IV, NEW. DELHI - 110024 ON WEDNESDAY, 30™
SEPTEMBER, 2020 at 11:00 A.M. TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESSES:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.

To receive, consider and adopt the Financial Statements of the Company for the
year ended 31* March, 2020 including Audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March,
2020 and the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended on that date and
the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon and the Audited
consolidated financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended on
March 31, 2020.

To re-appoint Mr. Vakamulla Chandrashekhar as Director {holding DIN
00073657), who retires by rotation and being efigible offers himself for re-
appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3.

Appointment of Mr. Parvinder Kumar (DIN: 08701343) as a Director
(Independent Category) of the Company:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the
following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to Section 149,152 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Appointment
and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (inciuding any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and Scheduie
iV to the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Parvinder Kumar (DiN: 08701343)
was appoinied as an Additional Director of the Company, with effect from 25
February 2020, pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act
2013 and the Arlicies of Association of the Com pcn.y and who hoids ofiice up t
the date of this Annual General Meeting, and g eligible, offer himself fo
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Appointment of Mr. Praneet Koh!i (DIN: 06617042) as a Director
(Independent Category) of the Company:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the
following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to Section 149,152 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Appointment
and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and Schedule

IV to the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Praneet Kchli (DIN: €6617042), who was
appointed as an Additional Director of the Company, with effect from 25
February 2020, pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Articles of Association of the Company and who holds office up to
the date of this Annual General Mesting, and being eligible, offer himself for
appointment and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in
writing from a member, pursuant to the provisions of Section 160 of the
Companies Act, 2013 proposing the candidature of Mr. Parvinder Kumar as a
candidate for the office of a director of the Company, be and is hereby appointed
as an Independent Director of the Company for a period of (5) Five years , not
liable to retire by rotation.

To re-appoint Mr. Vakamulla Chandrashekhar (DIN: 00073657) as Managing

resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Sections 196, 197 and
203 read with Schedule V and all other applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment
thereof for the time being in force), approvai of the Company be and is hereby
accorded to the re-appointment of Mr. Vakamulla Chandrashekhar {DIN:
00073657) as Managing Director of the Company, for a period of 3 (Three)
years with effect from October 1, 2020, without remuneration on the terms and
conditions, as set out in the Statement annexed to the Notice convening this
Meeting, with liberty to the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as “the

—~ n HPN s ~11 H 3 ~ ~
Board” which term shall be deemed to include the Human Res

Nomination and Remuneration Commitiee of the Board) to alier and v
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6. To re-appoint Mrs. V. Anu Naidu (DIN: 00073661) as a Whole-time Director
designated as Executive Director and in this regard to consider and if
thought fit, to pass, with or without modification{s), the following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Sections 196, 197 and
203 read with Schedule V and all other applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment
thereof, for the time being in force), approval of the Company be and is hereby
accorded to the re-appointment of Mrs. V. Anu Naidu (DIN: 00073661) as a
Whole-time Director, designated as Executive Director of the Company, for a
period of 3 {Three) years with effect from October 1, 2020 on the terms and
conditions including remuneration as set out in the Statement annexed to the
Notice convening this Meeting, with liberty to the Board of Directors (hereinafter
referred to as “the Board” which term shall be deemed to include the Human
Resources, Nomination and Remuneration committee of the Board) to alter and
vary the terms and conditions of the said re-appointment and / or remuneration
as it may deem fit and as may be acceptable to Mrs. V. Anu Naidu, subject to the
same not exceeding the limits specified under Schedule V to the Companies Act,
2013 or any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to do all
acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give
effect to this resolution.”

Date: 04.09.2020
Place: New Delhi

Company Secr: 2 tary &
M. No. A2545 i ‘

IMPORTANT NOTES:

1. The Company has fixed 4" September 2020 as the record date for determining the
entitiernent of shareholders to get Annuai Report. The Annuai closure of Register of
Members and the Share Transfer books of the Company will be done from
28.09.2020 to 02.10.2020 (both day inclusive).

N

The Meeting is proposed to be heid at the registered office of the Com

Shareholders are advised to strictly adhere to the Standard Operating Proce
g

(SOP) prescribed by the Miri%stry of Home .Affairs Gov* of India, such as so
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3. PURSUANT TO SECTION 105 (1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2813 (“Act”), A MEMBER
ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A
A ND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF. SUCH A

BE A

MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.



A person can act as proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty (50) and
holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the
Company.

The instrument of Proxy in order to be effective, shouid be deposited at the
Registered Office of the Company, duly completed and signed, not less than 48
hours before the commencement of the meeting. A Proxy form is sent herewith.
Proxies submitted on behalf of the companies and other body corporate must be
supported by an appropriate resolution/authority, as applicable.

To prevent fraudulent transactions, members are advised to exercise due diligence
and notify the Company of any change in address or demise of any member as
soon as possible. Members are also advised not to leave their demat account(s)
dormant for long. Periodic statement of holdings should be obtained from the
concerned Depository Participant and holdings should be verified.

Corporate members are requested to send a duly certified copy of the Board
resolution/ authority letter, authorizing their representative(s) to attend and vote on
their behalf at the meeting.

Members intending to require information about accounts to be explained at the
meeting are requested to write to the Company at least 10 (ten) days in advance of
the annual general meeting.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission
of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market.
Members hoiding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit the
PAN to their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their Demat
accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN details to
the Company.

MCA VIDE NOTIFICATION GSR-207(E), DATED 19™ MARCH 2015, HAS MADE
IT MANDATORY TO PROVIDE E-VOTING FACILITY FOR ALL THE LISTED
COMPANIES EXCEPT SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES. AS, OUR
COMPANY IS A SMALL & MEDIUM ENTERPRISES, IT IS NOT MANDATORY
FOR OUR COMPANY TO PROVIDE E-VOTING FACILITY TO ITS
SHAREHOLDERS IN GENERAL MEETING

Members holding shar mode are requested to intimate all
changes with respect date, nomination, power of allorney,
change of address, in name etc. to their depositery
participant. Thase Changes tomatically reflected in the Company's
records which will help the Company te provide efficient and better service to the
Members.

Memv:'s who rma s*“la'cs in physical form he share

se wi . ; ember 9,
case of any queries ] ting to this, Members may contact at th°
following address: Link Intime India anatv Limited, Noble Heights, ‘ISt lL:oor Piot
NH 2, C-1, Block LSC, Near Savitri Mame*, Jana;(pur: New Dethi — 110058, Tel
No.: 011-41410592, 4 |410503 E-mail: swapﬁnn@hak'n time.co.in.
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10.

1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

17.

Members holding shares in physical form are requested to intimate changes with
respect to their bank account (viz., name and address of the branch of the bank,
MICR code of branch, type of account and account number, mandate, nomination,
power of attorney, change of address, e-mail address, change in name etc.)
immediately to the Company.

Details under Regulation 36 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 in respect of the
Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting are
given in the explanatory statement annexed to this notice, which forms integral part
of the notice. The Directors have furnished the requisite declarations for their
appointment/re-appointment.

The relevant explanatory statement pursuant to section 102 of the Companies Act,
2013, in respect of the Special businesses set out above is annexed hereto.

Electronic copy of the Annual Report for 2020 is being sent to all the members
whose email IDs are registered with the Company/Depository Participants(s) for
communication purposes keeping in view the current situation because of the
Covid-19 pandemic which is prevalent throughout the Country.

Kindly register your e-mail address and contact details with us, by writing to us
addressed to the Secretarial Department at our corporate office, or at our e-mail 1D:
headoffice@tariniinfra.com.This will help us in prompt sending of notices, annual
reports and other shareholder communications in electronic form.

All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Explanatory
Statement shall be open for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company
during normal business hours (8.00 am to 5.00 pm) on all working days except
Sunday, up to and including the date of the Annual General Meeating of the
Company.

. The Register of contracts or arrangements, in which Directors are interested, will be

available for inspection by the members at the venue of the annual general
meeting.

The route map of the venue for the Annual General Meeting is given herein below
and aiso available on the website of the Company.

-,







Brief Profile of the Director seeking re-appointment in the 21 AGM in pursuance
of Regulation 36 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disciosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with Secretarial Standards
on General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of

India:

Name of the|Mr. Vakamulla|Mrs. V  Anu | Mr. Mr. Praneet
Director Chandrashekhar | Naidu Parvinder Kohli
Kumar
DIN 00073657 00073661 08701343 06617042
Date of Birth 14/03/1967 13/09/1969 12/09/1981 | 25/11/1960
Type of | Liable to retire by | Liable to retire by | Not  Liable | Not Liable to
appointment rotation rotation to retire by | retire
rotation rotation
Date of | 20.01.1999 20.01.1999 25.02.2020 | 25.02.2020
Appointment/ Re-
appointment
Areas of | Expertise in | Human Architecture | Business
Specialization Hydro Projects & | Resources
Transmission & | Development
Distribution (HRD)
Qualifications B.A Master of Arts | Bachelor in| B.Com
(Geography) Architecture
No. of Shares |70,18,281 equity | 20,01,565 equity | NIL NIL
Held in  the | shares Shares
Company
List of 1. M/s Tarini 1. M/s Tarini NIL 1. M/s
Directorship held Infrastruct Infrastruct Tiger
in outside Public ure Ltd ure Ltd Logist
Limited 2. Mls 2. M/s ics
Companies Venture Venture (India)
Energy & Energy & Ltd
Technolo Technolo
gies gies
Limited Limited
3. Tarini 3. Tarini
Sugar & Sugar &
Distiiiaries Distiliaries
Limited Limited
4. Venture 4, Venture
Infrastruct Infrastruct
ure
Limited
5. 5 B.
Soiimec
india
WVIHTING &
Overseas
Limited I
7. Tarini 7. Tarini IR RELTAR
Humanitar Humanitar & @
Demining Demining W adt ji
3 A N2 7
S = - \\“J };‘;/




Rehabilita Rehabilita
tion tion
AMorks Works
8. Tarini 8. Tarini
Wildernes Wildernes
S S
Innovation Innovation
s Private s Private
Limited Limited
9. Tarini 9. Tarini
Lifescienc Lifescienc
es Limited es Limited
10. West
Mountain
Power
Limited
Chairman/memb | Audit Committee | NIL Chairman Audit
er of the | (Member) Audit Committee
Committee of the Committee | (Member)
Board of
Directors of this Chairman Member
Company HRNR HRNR
Chairman/memb | Tarini NIL Tarini Tarini
er of the Infrastructure Infrastructur | Infrastructure
Commiittee of the | Limited Audit e Limited | Limited
Board of Committee Chairman Audit
Directors of other | (Member) Audit Committee
Companies Committee | (Member)
Chairman Member
HRNR HRNR
Relation with Key | Husband of Mrs. | Wife  of  Mr. | None None
Managerial V. Anu Naidu Vakamulla
Personnel and Chandrashekhar
Directors

Justification for

Promoter of the

Promoier of the

He has vast

He has good

appointment Company and | Company and | experience | business
having vide | having vide | in acumanship
experience in | experience in | Architecture | and he will
Hydro Projects & | Human and his | contribute to
Transmission & | Resources contribution | the
Distribution Deveiopment will be more | Company.
(HRD) halpful  for
the
Company.
A (-,i ,
O
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STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
(“the Act”)

Item No. 3

The Board, at its meeting held on 25" February, 2020 appointed Mr. Parvinder Kumar as
an Additional Director (Independent Category) of the Company with effect from 25"
February 2020, pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the
Articles of Association of the Company. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 of the
Companies Act, 2013, he will hold office up to the date of the ensuing AGM. Mr.
Parvinder Kumar, aged 38 years, is Architecture. The Company has received declaration
from him to the effect that he meets the criteria of independence as provided in
subsection (6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013.The resolution seeks the
approval of members for the appointment of Mr. Parvinder Kumar as an Independent
Director of the Company for a period of 5 years from the date of his appointment
pursuant to Section 149 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the Rules made there under. He will not liable to retire by rotation.

item No. 4

The Board, at its meeting held on 25" February, 2020 appointed Mr. Praneet Kohli as an
Additional Director (Independent Category) of the Company with effect from 25"
February 2020, pursuant to Section 181 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the
Articles of Association of the Company. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 of the
Companies Act, 2013, he will hold office up to the date of the ensuing AGM. Mr. Praneet
Kohli, aged 59 years, is Graduate and Self employed Business Man. He is also director
in Tiger Logistics (India) Limited. The Company has received declaration from him to the
effect that he meets the criteria of independence as provided in subsection (6) of Section
149 of the Companies Act, 2013.The resolution seeks the approval of members for the
appointment of Mr. Praneet Kohli as an Independent Director of the Company for a
period of 5 years from the date of his appointment pursuant to Section 149 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under. He
will not liable to retire by rotation.

ltem Nos. 5
Mr. Vakamulla Chandrashekhar is the promoter and Director of thn Comnany who is
actively involved for targeting the business and created a niche in the field of Power

I
Transmission and Distribution. There are several projects accomplished either on
turnkey basis or through consultancy in writing DPRs eisc. He posse

0 -——"

experience and know-how, therefore the coverali performance of the Compa

ni, has

recommended by the H uman Resources, N
‘HRNR Committee’) of the Board and approv

It is proposed to seek the members’ approval for the.re-appointment of Mr. Vakamuila
Chandrashekhar as Managing Director desm'\aled asEXéCl’Jtcw Director, in terms of the
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Mr. Vakamulla Chandrashekhar holds the office of Managing Director in Tarini
Infrastructure Limited, one of the Group Companies. In terms of proviso 3 to sub section
3 of section 203 the consent of all the Directors present in the meeting has been
obtained by the company in the Board meeting held on 04™ September 2020.

Broad particulars of the terms of re-appointment of and remuneration payable to Mr.
Vakamulla Chandrashekhar are as under:

REMUNERATION:
(i) Salary: NIL

The Managing Director shall not be eligible for any sitting fees for the Company's
Board Meetings.

The above details may please be treated as an abstract of the Terms & Conditions of
appointment under section 190 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Mr. Vakamulla Chandrashekhar shall be liable to retire by rotation.

The nature of concern or interest, financial or otherwise, if any, in respect of the
resolution is furnished below.

Sl. Particular of Persons Nature of Concern or Interest
No.
1. Mr. Vakamulla | Both are concerned in this

Chandrashekhar, Managing | resolution as KMP as well as
Director, Mrs. V. Anu Naidu, | shareholders of the Company.

Whole Time Director
2. Mr. Abhilash Chand Jain, | Mr. A. C Jain is concerned in this

CFO, resolution as KMP of the
Company

3. Mr. Amit Arora, Company | Mr. Amit Arora is concerned in

Secretary this resolution as KMP of the
Company

Item No. 6

Mrs. V Anu Naidu is the promoter and director of the Company since incorporation. She
possesses sufficient experience and know-how. Under her able management, the
company has performed well on its financial front.

!.‘A—

The Board of Directors of the COmpany \Lhe BOa.d) at its rmetmg heid on September
04, 2020 has, subject io the approval of members, re-appointed Mrs. V. Anu Naidu as

Whole Time Director, for a period of 3 (Three) years from the expiry of his present term,
which expired on September 30, 2020, at the remuneration recommended by the Human
2escurces, Nomination and Remuneration Commitiee {the 'HRNR Committeg’) of the

-

Broad particutars of the terms of re-zppointment of and remuneration payable to Mrs. V.

Anu Naidu are as under:




REMUNERATION:
(i Salary: Rs.100,000/- (Rupees One Lac only) per month to Mrs. Anu Naidu.

In addition to the Salary, the Whole Time Director is entitied to the following
benefits:

(ii) Furnished Accommodation: The Whole Time Director, since required
dedicated separate space for the Company’s Business commitments and
also to maintain high degree of standards as per the profile, she is entitled for
furnished residential accommodation.

(iii) Perquisites:

Insurance: The life and personal accident insurance cover shall be as per
the policy of the company.

Club Fees: Fees of clubs subject to a maximum of two clubs. It also
includes admission and life membership fees paid.

iv) Car & Telephone: for use on Company’s business and telephone and/or cellular
phone will not be considered as perquisites. Personal long distance calls on phone
and use of car for private purposes shall be billed by the Company.

The aggregate of the salary and all perquisites as enumerated above, shall at no
time exceed the limits as may be prescribed from time to time under the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013, schedules thereto and rules there under, as well as any
other statutory provisions as may be applicable. Payment and entitlement of Gratuity
and other superannuation benefits shall remain as per the policy of the Company.

The Whole Time Director shall not be eligible for any sitting fees for the Company's
Beard Meetings.

The above details may please be treated as an abstract of the Terms & Conditions of
appointment under section 190 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Mrs. V. Anu Naidu shali be liable to retire by rotation.

The nature of concern or interest, financial or otherwise, if any, in respect of the
resolution is furnished beiow.

Si. Particular of Persons Nature of Concern or Interest

No.

1. ivir. ‘akamulla | Both are concerned in this
Chandrashekhar, Managing | resolution as KMP as well as
Director, Mrs. V. Anu Naidu, cmpar
- Whole Time Director

2. iir. Abhiiash Chand Jain,

3. Am Arcra, Company
Secretary
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STATEMENT FORMING PART OF THE NOTICE with regard to ltem No.5 and 6

As per the requirement of Section — Il of Part — Il of Schedule V of the
Companies Act. 2013

. GENERAL INFORMATION

1. Nature of the Industry: Turnkey Contractors & Consultancy in Power,
Generation, Transmission & Distribution

2. Date of Commencement of Commercial Production: N.A.

3. Financia!l Performance based on given indicators:  The Company is a profit
making Company.

4. Export Performance and net foreign exchange collaboration: The Company
has completed its earlier project of Transmission & Distribution lines abroad in South
African region.

5. Foreign Investment or collaborators, if any: N.A.

II. INFORMATION ABOUT THE APPOINTEES

1. Background details —

Name ' Designation Date of Birth Address

Mr. Vakamulla Chairman Cum 14.03.1967 F-33 East of Kailash,
Chandrashekhar ~ Managing Director New Delhi — 110065
Mrs. Anu Naidu Whole Time Director  13.02.1969 F-33 East of Kailash,

New Delhi - 110065

2. Past Remuneration — Mr. Vakamulla Chandrashekhar —  NIL

-
or

Mrs. V. Anu Naidu - Rs.1 Lacpermon
3. Recognition or Awards — N.A.

4. Job Profiie & Suitability -

in the Company
Industry. Under their
s

Handling the managerial responsibility as Key Ma
since 1999 (year) and having 24 Years of ex_ erience in the
able direction and r\r\nh’rﬂ the Co-‘r\pan/ has arow

g

e
expertise towards the industry and market conditions analysis
o .

which make them most suitabie for the position and prog

vakzmuiiz Ch — HiL ang s
6. Comparative Remuneration Profile with respsct to industiry, size of the
company, profile of the position and person — Remuneration of the Directors is

not so high, which require any comparlson with other industry. The remuneration
proposed for approval is far b@'ow tne present g“ arket packages for their position.
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7. Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the company or relationship
with the managerial personnel, if any — as detailed hereinabove.

lil. OTHER INFORMATION

1. Reasons of loss or inadequate profits:

Since the industry segment is of such kind for which specialized and technical
workmanship is required, hence there is limitation for project commitments. It all
depends upon available technical staff.

2. Steps taken or proposed to be taken for improvement

The Company is negotiating business opportunities in T&D business in India and
Abroad and is confident of getting more orders in the days to come.

3. Expected increase in productivity and profits in measurable terms
The profits might touch 5% to 10% level of the capital investment in the Company.

No separate agreement is executed in this regard. Mr. Vakamulla Chandrashekhar
and Mrs. V. Anu Naidu, Directors of the company are concerned or interested in the
respective proposed resolution.

Your Directors recommend the Resolutions for your approval.

The nature of concern or interest, financial or otherwise, if any, in respect of the
resolution is furnished below.

Sl Particular of Persons Nature of Concern or Interest
No.
1. Mr. Vakamulla | Both are concerned in this

Chandrashekhar, Managing | resolution as KMP as well as
Director, Mrs. V. Anu Naidu, | shareholders of the Company.

Whole Time Director
2. Mr. Abhilash Chand Jain, | Mr. A. C Jain is concerned in this

CFO, resolution as KMP of the
Company

3. Mr. Amit Arora, Company | Mr. Amit Arorz is concerned in

Secretary this resolution as KMP of the
Company




DIRECTORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF TARINI INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Dear Shareholders,

Your Directors are pleased to present the Twenty First Annual Report on the working of
the Company for the period from 7% April, 2019 to 31" March, 2020 with audited
statements of accounts :-

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Company’s Financial Performances during the year 2019-20 as compared to the
previous year 2018-18 is summarized below:-

Particulars STANDALONE CONSOLIDATED
‘ for the year ended for the year ended
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2020 2019 2020 2019
Total Revenue 2,43,21,330 | 2,24,02,376 | 1,77,68,861 | 2,30,92,613
Total Profit before tax 44,56,143 7,07,833 | (19,98,916) | (67,42,010)
Tota!l Profit after tax 24,64,213 4,69,293 65,20,251 | (6,980,549)

RESERVES & SURPLUS

The Company's reserve & surplus in the year 2020 has increased to Rs.
17,40,69,884/- as compared to the previous year figure of Rs. 17,16,05,671/-

Further, the Company’s reserve & surplus in the year 2020 as per the Consolidated
Balance sheet has increased to Rs.16,03,21,939/- as compared to the previous year
figure of Rs. 15,17,41,419/-

PERFORMANCE REVIEW
Your Cempany retains the operation and maintenance contract for Damanganga hydro

powar pr Je ct in Gujarat. The Company pul on hold for the tinie bsing its projects of
Subsidiaries/Associates Companies

is & continue re sbim in the economy your Direciors are

ortunities. Your Directors ook forward to & fruitful and




SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

The Company has (02) two subsidiaries Tarini Sugars and Distillaries Limited and
Venture Infrastructure Limited There are (02) two associate companies within the
meaning of Section 2(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) i.e. Tarini Infrastructure
Limited, and Tarini Life sciences Limited. There has been no material change in the
nature of the business of the subsidiaries and there is no company which have become
or ceased to become subsidiary, joint-venture or Associate Company during the year.

Pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Accounting Standard - 21
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, Consolidated Financial
Statements presented by the Company include the Financial Statements of its
Subsidiaries.

Further, a separate statement containing the salient features of the financial statements
of subsidiaries of the Company in the prescribed form AOC-1 has been given in the
Consolidated Financial Statements. In terms of provisions of Section 136 of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Company will place separate audited accounts of the
Subsidiary Companies on its website.

The Company will make available physical copies of these documents upon request by
any shareholder of the Company / subsidiary interested in obtaining the same.

These documents shall also be available for inspection at the Registered Office of the
Company during business hours up to the date of ensuing AGM.

PUBLIC DEPGCSIT

The Company has not accepted any Public Deposit pursuant to provisions of section 73
of the Companies Act, 2013, during the period under review.

AUDITORS

M/s M. Modi & Associates. Chartered Accountants continues to be the Statutory Auditors
of the Company on the remuneration to be decided by the Board of Directors. M/s M.
Modi & Associates. Chartered Accountants have submitted a certificate, confirming that
their appointment is within the limits prescribed in the Section 139 read with Section 141
of the Act.

The Statutory Auditors have given certain cbservations in their Audit report as under:

We draw attention to note 31 to Financial Statement regarding the investment
amounting Rs.121.59 Lakhs in the subsidiaries, which has suffered recurring
losses and has a net capital deficiency. The financial statements of that
subsidiary have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a
going concern. These conditions raise substantial doubt about its ability to
continue as a going concern. The standalone financial statements do not include
any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of assst carrying
amounis rrd‘ mo,,t result maf the suoa iary cc ancfc fo conlii ng

Though there is an accumulated loss in the subsidiary compani

companies has not bagged new projects or work orders dus to recession
scenario. However, lot of bids are still open for participation and the said
company will bag some orders in the near future and hence your directors are of
the opiﬂion that no adjustment is required at this stage and the same will be done
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The other observations of the Auditor are self explanatory and need no reply
from the Board of Directors.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the
Board had appointed Mr. Manoj Sharma, Partner, RSMV & Co. Practising Company
Secretaries, to conduct Secretarial Audit for the financial year 2019-20. The Secretarial
Audit Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2020 is appended as Annexure | to
this Report.

The Report contains the following observations:-

1.

&)

The holding company has given the collateral guarantee for the loan taken by its
associate company / Directors & loans / advances granted amounting to Rs.
897.19 Lakhs to group companies in which directors are interested; the holding
company is yet to comply with the provisions of section 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013.

The Enforcement Directorate under The Prevention of Money Laundering Act,
2002 has provisionally attached the farm house of the Company and the
company has obtained the stay from the High Court of Delhi against the said
aftached order.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) has passed the order
dated 29.03.2019 under section 11 and 11B of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act,1992. The company has contested the said order in the
Securities Appellant Tribunal vide Appeal No. 179/2019, which has passed an
interim order dated 03.05.2018 for no coercive action.

The Adjudicating Officer, Securities and Exchange Board of India has passed the
order dated 10.02.2020 under section 15-1 of The Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992. The company has filed an appeal against the said order
in the Securities Appellant Tribunal.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of one Executive
Director (Promoter) in the place of Non-Executive Director. To this extent, there
is non-complianice of provision of section 178 (1) of the Companies Act 2013.

An Investigation process was initiated by Regional Director (North) Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, consequent to SEBI communication received by MCA, under
Section 210(1){c) of the Companies Act,2013. The Company is co-operating and
provided documents as sought and has been ordered by the Inspectors

= ( ~r $h 1o otimats
appointed for the purpose of the said investigation.

PAeT U

section 447 of i 1 448 of the

Act. The CJmpany vide its / ter u’alcd 197 Uccem)ef 2018 fum'snﬂo ihe reply
and has contested the preposterous allegations therein. As per the information
provided to us, the Company has not received any reply from the ROC



Your Directors would like to clarify as under to the said observations:

1. It should be noted that these loans were given for execution of various work
items by these companies for the projects proposed to be undertaken by the
Companies under the same management. It should also be noted that these
Companies have no source of funding such as bank loans etc., due to infra start
ups in nature. Though the company has ratified the aforesaid advances in the
AGM of the company to be held on 28" September 2019, the loan is still
continuing.

2. The company has obtained the stay from the High Court of Delhi against the said
attached order and the stay continues.

3. The observation is a factual statement and your Directors are of the opinion that
this observation does not need any reply.

4. The observation is a factual statement and your Directors are of the opinion that
this observation does not need any reply

5. Your Directors are looking for a suitable person for appointment which will be
done as earliest as possible.

6. The Company provided the necessary information and statement was recorded a
year ago and clarified. The company had also contested the same through a Writ
in the Hon’ble High Court of Delhi. The outcome of which is a matter of record.
The Company reserves its right to appeal further without prejudice.

7. The Company vide its letter dated 19" December 2018 furnished the reply and
has contested the preposterous allegations therein. It is also pertinent to mention
the said is also based on SEBI Communication on the same fake premise. The
company is also facing double jeopardy and violation of rights and contemplating
defending itself without prejudice.

o]

Your Directors clarify that the delay is due to the reasons beyond their control.
However since the position has slightly improved, your Directors hope to meet
these liabilities in future within the stipulated time.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your Company has bsen Complying with the principles of good corporate governance
over the years and is commitied fo the highest standards of Comipliance.

ent exec u'ted by your Comp:ny n **‘e BSE read with
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EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN

In accordance with Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, extract of the annual
return in the prescribed format is appended as Annexure lI to the Board's Report.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

The Board met (8) Eight times during the financial year viz; on 04.04.2019, 22.04.2019,
30.05.2019, 05.09.2019, 14.11.2019, 24.12.2019, 25.02.2020 and 09.03.2020.The
necessary quorum was present in all the meetings. The intervening gap between any
two meetings was not more than one hundred and twenty days as prescribed by the
Companies Act, 2013.

POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION

The policy of the Company on Directors’ appointment and remuneration, including
criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a Director and
other matters provided under Sub section (3) of Section 178 of the Companies Act,
2013, adopted by the Board, has been disclosed separately at Annexure Il to the
Board’s Report.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Board has three committee’s viz., the audit committee, nomination and
remuneration committee and Shareholders’ / Investors’ Grievance Committee

The details pertaining to composition of above committees are given separately at
Annexure lii to the Board’s Report.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

As per the provisions of the Companies Act 2013, Mr. Vakamulla Chandrashekhar (DIN:
00073857), retires at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, seeks re-
appointment. The Board recommends his re appointment.

Mr. Parvinder Kumar and Mr. Praneet Kohli who are appointed as Additional Director in
the Board Meeting held on 25.02.2020 are proposed to be appointed as regular
Independent Directors in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

The brief profile of the Director who is to be re-appointed /appointed, are furnished in the
notice of the annual general meeting. The Board recommends re-appointment/
appointment of above said Directors.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Audited Accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2020 are in conformity with
the requirements of h Companies Act, 2013. FLTSJaﬂt to Section 134(5 of the
Companies Act, 2013, vour directors hereby confirm that:

1 in ne nrenarstl nnigzi aconunis

rs had s ted such accounting
consistently and made judgments and estimatas
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the stat { aiiai e
company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss account of
the company for that period.

iii) The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of
adequate accounting recoids in accordance with the provisions of this Act for



fraud and other irregularities.

iv) The Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

V) The Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the
company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were
operating effectively.

vi) The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and
operating effectively.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS AND GUARANTEES

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(3) (g) of the Companies Act, 2013 the
particulars of loans, guarantees or investments under Section 186 of the Act as at end of
the Financial Year 2019-20 are attached as Annexure - IV which forms part of this
report.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

All contracts / arrangements / transactions entered by the Company during the financial
year with related parties were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length
basis. The Company has not entered in any material related party transaction during the
year.

Information on transactions with related parties pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) of the Act
read with rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are given in Form AOC-2
at Annexure V and the same forms part of this report.

Please refer Note No. 35 to the financial statement which sets out related party
disclosures as prescribed under Accounting Standard 18.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL

The Company has in place adeqguate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statement, including adherence to the Company’s policies, safeguarding of its assets,
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, accuracy and completeness of the

accounting records and timely preparation of reliable financial disclosures.

The detailed information about internal controls is set out in the Management Discussion
& Analysis report which is atiached and forms part of this Report.

VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has implemented a Wh sﬂe Biowe. Pom,y a'\d has eskabxshed a vigil

Blower Policy comph\,; with the requirements of Vigil mechanism as stipulated under
Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. The details of establishmsant of tha Whistle

licy/ Vigii mechanism have been disciosed on the website of the Company.
SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS
There are no significant and malerial orders passsd by the regulators or Courts or
tribunals impacting the going concern status and Company's opera*'o s in fulure.



PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The information required under section 197 (12) of the Act Rule 5(1) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, in respect of
employees of the Company is appended as Annexure VI to the Board’s report.

As far as the disclosure with regard to Rule 5 (2) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the information may be treated as
NIL.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY AND TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

Provisions of Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 regarding Conservation of
Energy and Technology Absorption does not apply to your Company.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO

During the year under review the foreign exchange earnings and the expenditure was
nil.

BUY BACK OF SECURITIES

The Company has not made any offer for buy back of its securities during the year under
review.

SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

Your Company has in place a formail policy for prevention of sexual harassment of its
women employees in line with "The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

During the year under review, there were no cases filed pursuant to the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors wish to place on record their appreciation for the whole hearted and
sincere co-operation the Company has received from its banker, Bank of India and
various Government agencies. Your Directors also wish to thank ali the employees for
their co-operation.
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Annexure |

‘SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31° March 2020
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rufe No.9 of the Companies
Appointment and Remuneration Personne! Rules’ 2014]

To

The Board of Directors

TARINI INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
D-2, FIRST FLOOR, AMAR COLONY,
LAJPAT NAGAR IV,

NEW DELHI-110024

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by TARINI INTERNATIONAL
LIMITED. (hereinafter called the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a
manner that provided us a - reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the company and also the information, details and
explanation ‘provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatlves during the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my
opinion, the company has, during the audit period covermg the financial year ended on
31%* March 2020 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that
the Compqny has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by TARIM INTERNATIONAL LIMITED (“the Company”) for the
financial year ended on 31% March 2020 according to the provisions of the following
Acts and Rules there under. We had also discussed with the management of the
Company on the various aspects of compliances by the Company of the Acts and Rules:

i.  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under

ii. The Securities COﬂthLS (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA) and the rules made
there under;

Ié3)

i, ‘Depositories Act, 188

e and the Regulations end Bye-laws framed there
A e
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To ‘ANNEXURE A"

The Board of Directors =7
TARIN! INTERNATIONAL LIMI
D2, FIRST FLOOR, AMAR.COLONY,
'LAJPAT NAGAR:
NEW DELHI-11002

Our report of even date i along with t’hi‘s*l’etter :

1. Maintenance of secret; nd ther fecords are the rest ns’b:hty of the management of
the company. Our respon 1bﬂtty Isto ‘express an opmlon on these secretarial records based
on‘our audit,

2. We have followed the' -‘audrt prachces and’ processes as were appropnate 1o obtain
redsonable assurarice about the correctness of the contents of the récords, The verification
was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in the records. ‘We believe
that the processes and practices, we fo_llowesj provide a reasonable basis for our ¢pinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropnateness of financial records and Books
of Accounts of the company

’4 Where: ever. quired, we have obtained the Management representation about the
comphance of laws, fules and regulations and happening of events efc.

5. The comphanca of the provisions .of Corporate and other. @pplicable laws, rules,
regulatlons standards is" responsibility of the Management. Our examination was hmlted
to the verification of procedures oh test basis,

6. The Secretarial Audit report.is neither an assurance as 1o the fu ture viability of the

:company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the
affairs of the company. :

|
|

7. The ‘Audit has been conducted on the basis of the soﬁ copies! photocoples of documents
provided to us by e-mail andwe relied on these documents fully, as'we couid not make visit
to the office(s) of the company diie to restrictions on account of COVID-19. }

ForR;MV&Co

Place: Delhi
Date: 04/09/2020

(J‘J
U‘

o UDIN: FG07516B0005




Annexure li

FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on financial year ended on 31.03.2020
Pursuant to Section 92 {3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company
(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014.

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

[ CIN

L74899DL1999PLC097993

li Registration Date

20/01/1999

iii Name of the Company

TARINI INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

1iv Category/Sub-category of the | Company Limited by Shares/ Indian
Company Non-Government Company
v Address of the Registered office & | D-2, 1* Floor, Amar Colony, Llajpat
Contact Details Nagar — IV, New Delhi - 110024 .
Vi Whether listed company Yes

vii Name

, Address & contact details of |
the Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any.

Link Intime India Private Limited
C-101, 247 PARK, L.B.S MARG,

| VIKHROLI (WEST),

MUMBAL, 400083

Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company

shall be stated:-

| SLNo { Name & Descripton main | NIC Code of the % to total turnover of
products/services Product /service the company
1 Engineering, consultancy, turnkey { 71100 100%
contracts in power sector

I PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES —
St | Name & | CIN/GLN iOLDING/S | % GF APPLICABLE
No | Address of the UBSD!ARY/ SHARE | SECTION OF
Company ASSOCIATE | S COMPANIES
HELD ACT, 2013
{directiy)
1. | Tarini  Sugars | U01542DL2006PLC1 | Subsidiary 84.57 2(87) (i)
&  Distillaries | 50648
Limited -
Z. Subsidiary 83.00 2 (871 (i)
i | j
3. | U45201DL2004PLC1 | Associate 34.99 2 (8)
Infrastructure 30447
Limited
4. | Tarini U85100DL2012RPLC2 | Associate 33.40 2 (6)
Lifesciences 33368
Limited

e
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IV SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Break up as percentage of
total Equity)
(i) Catﬁeﬁg‘or

-] Shares Pled
s | otherwise
|.encumberec

(A) | Promoter
and
Promaoter
Group
(1) | Indian
(a) | Individuals/ 6 9019934 9019846 | 69.39 | 65.39
HinduUndivide
d

Family

(b) | CentralGovern | - - - - - - -
ment/ State
Government(s)

{c) | Bodies - | - - - - - -
Corporate
(d) | Financial - - - - -
Institutions/
Banks

(e) | AnyOther - - - - - - -
(specify)

Sub-Total 6 9019934 9015846 | 69.39 | 69.39 | - -
(A)(1)
(2) | Foreign
{a} | Individuals - - - - -
(Non-Resident.
Individuals/
Foreign

~ | Individuatls)
{b) | Bodies - - - - -
Corporate

{c) | Institutions - - - B B _
} | Any Other - . - B B
{specify)

(0
[iS0}
-~
el
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Y
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(23}

romoter
Group (A)=
(A){1)+(A)N2)
(8) | Public
sharehoidin
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| Category =+ | 'Number |- Total " | Number | Total * | 'Shares:Pledged or

o 6f .| number of | ‘of | shareholding as| otherwise
shareholdgr*; ; HErC : :

Mutual
Funds/UTI
(b) | Financial - - - - - N.A N.A
Institutions/ :

Banks

(c) | Central - - - - - N.A N.A
Government/ :

State
Government(s)
(d) | Venture - - - - - N.A N.A
Capital Funds
(e) | Insurance - - - - - N.A N.A
Companies
(f)y | Foreign - - - - - N.A N.A
Institutional
Investors
(g) | Foreign - - - - - NA | NA
Venture
Capital
Investors
(h) | Nomina - - - - - NA NA
ted
investor
s (as
defined
in
Chapter
XAof
SEB!
(ICDR)
Regulat
ions )
) Any Other - - - - - NA NA
{specify)
Sub- ¢ 0 ¢ (4]
Total(B}{1)
(2) | Non-
institutions
(a) | Bodies 17 1997000 1997000 | 15.36 | 15.36 | NA NA

[
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=z
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nominal share
capital upto
Rs. 2lakh.




ii.Individual shareholders 16 1402000 1402000 10.80 10.80 | N.A | NLA
holding
nominal share capital in
excess of Rs. 2lakh. |
(C) | Qualified Foreign 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 { N.A | N.A
Investor
(d) | Others
(1) Trusts 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 | N.A | NLA
(2) Director’s Relatives 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 | N.A | N.A
(3) Foreign Nationals 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 | N.A | N.A
(4) Non Resident Indians 2 6000 6000 0.05 0.05 | N.A | N.A
(5) Hindu Undivided 7 63000 63000 0.48 0.48 | N.A | N.A
Families
(6) Clearing Member 0 0 0 0 0 N.AJNA |
Sub-Total(B)(2) 167 | 3978066 | 3978000 | 30.61| 30.61 | NA| N.A
Total 167 | 3978066 | 3978000 | 30.61| 30.61 | N.A| N.A
PublicShareholding
(B)= (B)(1)+(B)(2)
TOTAL (A)+(B) 173 | 12998000 | 12997846 | 100.00 | 100.00 | N.A | N.A
(C) | Shares held by Custodians - - - N.A -1 N.A | NA
and against  which
Depository Receipts
have been issued
GRAND TOTAL 173 | 12998000 | 12997846 | 100.00 | 100.00 | N.A | NLA
(A)+(B)+(C)
** Total Number of shares held in Demat Form: 12997846 ason 31.03.2020
Total Number of shares held in Physical Form: 154 ason 31.03.2020
Total Number of shares: 12998000 ason 31.03.2020

(ii) SHAREHOLDING OF PROMOTERS

eyea

Sharcholding st t

:'-‘-v‘srharg;x , shares
S e mB el e
&f the | ‘encum- i
... |compan bered | duri
Loyl tototal ng -
' : year
' 54.00 7018281 | 54.00 )

wn

? - 22
4 | V. A. Rajeshwari 22 - 22 -
5 Vakamulla - -
Bhaskar Naidu 22 i 22
6 | Vakamulla Tarini 79 2
Naidu = -
£C 20




(iii) CHANGE IN PROMOTERS' SHAREHOLDING (FLEASE SPECIFY, IF THERE IS

NO CHANGE)

SL. No.

Shareholding at the beginning
of the year

Cumulative Share holding
during the year

No. of Shares % of total No. of Shares % of total
shares shares
| of the of the
company company

There has been no change in the Promoters shareholding during the year under

review.

(IV) SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF TOP TEN SHAREHOLDERS (OTHER THAN
DIRECTORS, PROMOTERS & HOLDERS OF GDRS & ADRS)

SL. No | For Each of the Top Shareholding at the beginning Share holding at the end
10 Shareholders of the year of the year
No .of Shares | % of total No. of | % of total
shares Shares shares
of the of the
company company
1. MITESH KUMAR 507000 3.9006 507000 3.9006
2. GLOBE CAPITAL | 393000 3.0235 498000 3.8314
MARKET LIMITED
3. EQUATOR 366000 2.81581 366000 2.81581
CORPORATE
SERVICES PRIVATE
LIMITED
4. NITU TRADING - - 249000 1.9157
COMPANY LIMITED
5. NEWEDGE VINIMAY - - 168000 1.2925
PRIVATE LIMITED
6. DISPLAY 168000 1.2825 150060 1.1540
COMMERCIAL
PRIVATE LIMITED
7. GOENKA CAPITAL - - 142000 1.0925
MARKET SERVICES :
8. SANJEEV 128000 1.0817 138000 1.0617
{ARBANSLAL
BHATIA
e, GUINESS 138000 1.0817 1328000 1.0817
| 1E |
10. SUNCARE TRADERS - - 105000 0.8078
LIMITED

s




(v) SHAREHOLDING OF DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Sl. No

For Each of the
Directors & KMP

Shareholding at the
beginning
of the year

Cumulative Share holding

during the year

% of total
shares

of the
company

No. of
shares

No. of shares

% of
shares
of

total

the

Mr. Vakamulla
Chandrashekhar
(Managing Director)

company

At the beginning of
the year

7018281 | 53.9951

7018281

53.9951

At the end of the
year

7018281 | 53.9951

7018281

53.9951

Mrs. V. Anu Naidu
(Whole Time Director)

At the beginning of
the year

2001565 | 15.3990

2001565

15.3990

At the end of the
year

2001565 | 15.3990

2001565

15.3990

Mr.
Jain
Chief Financial Officer
(CFO)

Abhilash Chand

At the beginning of
the year

22 0.00

22

0.00

At the end of the
vear

22 0.00

22

0.00

Mr. Amit Arora
Company Secretary

At the beginning of
the year

0.00 0.00

0.00

0.00

At the end of the

year

0.00 0.00

0.00

0.00

Vo




V INDEBTEDNESS

(Rs.)
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for
payment
Secured Unsecured Deposits Total
Loans Loans Indebtedness
excluding (PCFC + Bank
deposits Overdraft)
Indebtness at the
beginning of the
financial year
i) Principal Amount 2,91,04,923 51,36,153 3,42,41,076
ii) Interest due but - - -
not paid
iii) Interest accrued - - -
but not due
Total (i+ii+iii) 2,91,04,923 51,36,153 3,42,41,076
Change . in
Indebtedness during
the
financial year
Additions 28,37,553 29,72,000 58,09,553
Reduction (1,08,12,799) (55,03,153) (1,63,15,952)
Net Change (79,75,246) (25,31,153) (1,05,06,399)
Indebtedness at the
end of the
financial year
i) Principal Amount 2,11,29,677 26,05,000 2,37,34,677
ii) Interest due but - - - -
not paid
iii) Interest accrued - - - -
but not due
Total (i+ii+iii) 2,11,28,677 28,05,000 2,37,34,677




VI REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole time director and/or Manager:

Sl.
No

Particulars ' of
Remuneration

Name of the MD/WTD/Manager

Total Amount

1.

Gross salary

Mr.

Vakamulla

Chandrashekhar

Managing Director

Mrs. V. Anu
Naidu
Whole

Director

Time

(a) Salary as per
provisions contained in
17(1)  of

Income Tax. 1961.

section the

NIL

12 Lacs

12 Lacs

(b) Value of perquisites
u/s 17(2) of the

Income tax Act, 1961

(c ) Profits in lieu of salary
under section
17(3) of the Income Tax

Act, 1961

Stock option

Sweat Equity

Commission as % of profit

others (specify)

o

Others, please specify

Total (A)

-
N
—
8]
[9]
[72]

Ceiling as per the Act

indep

L.
cnaent ).




C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN
MD/MANAGER/WTD

Sl. No. | Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
1. Gross Salary CEO Company CFO
Secretary
(a) Salary as per provisions N.A. Rs. Rs.
contained in section 17(1) of the 4,96,000/- | 2,40,000/-
Income Tax Act, 1961.
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) N.A.

of the Income Tax Act, 1961

(c ) Profits in lieu of salary under N.A.

section 17(3) of the Income Tax

Act, 1961
2. Stock Option N.A.
Sweat Equity N.A.
4. Commission N.A.
- as % of profit N.A.
- others, specify N.A.
5. Others, please specify N.A.
Total N.A. Rs. Rs.

4,96,000/- 2,40,000/-

VIl PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

Type Section  of | Brief Details of Authority Appeal
the Description | Penalty/ (RD/NCLT/ | made
Companies Punishment/ Court) if any
Act Compounding {give

fees impose details)

A. COMPANY *

Penalty * Note Given below

Punishment

CamrarimdAim s
LUpOUniU iy

B. DIRECTORS
P

he Adjudicating Officer, Securities and Exchange Board of India has
:ssed the order dated 10.02.2020 under section 15 of The

=

Sar O (NTD —-l
o W




Penalty NONE

Punishment

Compounding

1.

SEBI has passed an order under section 11 and 11B of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 on 29.03.2019 in the matter of IPO of the
company and has restricted the Company and its promoter directors from raising
funds from/dealing in securities market and directed to take urgent and efficient
measure to recover all money recoverable.

The Company has contested the said order in the securities Appellate Tribunal
(SAT) vide Appeal no 179/2019, which has passed an interim order dated
03.05.2019 with no coercive action.

The Adjudicating Officer, Securities and Exchange Board of India has passed the
order dated 10.02.2020 under section 15-1 of The Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992.

The company has filed an appeal against the said order in the Securities
Appellant Tribunal.

An Investigation process was initiated by Regional Director (North) Ministry of
Corporate Affairs consequent to SEBI communication on a fake premise under
section 210(1)(c) of the Companies Act,2013.

The Company provided the necessary information and statement was recorded a
year ago and clarified. The company had also contested the same through a Writ
in the Hon'ble High Court of Delhi. The outcome of which is a matter of record.
The Company reserves its right to appeal further without prejudice.

The Registrar of Companies, NCT of Delhi & Haryana had issued a show cause
notice vide no. ROC/TS/PP/Tarini/fSCN/448/CO/7982 dated 11.12.2018 under
section 447 of the Companies Act, 2013 for alleged violation of section 448 of the
Act.

The Company vide its letter dated 19" December 2018 furnished the reply and
has contested the preposterous allegations therein. It is also pertinent to mention
the said is also based on SEBI Communication on the same fake premise. The
company is also facing double jeopardy and violation of rights and contemplating
defending itseli without prejudice.




Annexure il

DETAILS OF COMMITTEES

1. Audit Committee

The Company had constituted an Audit Committee in the year 2011. The scope of the activities
of the Audit Committee is as set out in Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. The terms of
reference of the Audit Committee are broadly as follows:

The role of the Audit committee includes the following:

1. Overseeing of the Company’s financial reporting process and disclosure of its financial
information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible.

2. Recommending to the Board the appointment, re-appointment, terms of appointment/ re-
appointment and, if required, the replacement or removal of the statutory audltor and the
fixation of audit fees/remuneratlon

3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory
auditors.

4. Reviewing, with the Management, the annual financial statements before submission to the
Board for approval, with particular reference to:

* Matters required to be included in the Director’'s Responsibility Statement to be included in the
Board's report in terms of sub section (5) of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013.

* Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same.

*+ Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by the
Management.

« Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings.

« Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements.

* Disclosure of any related party transactions.

+ Quaiifications in the draft audit report.

5. Review/examine, with the Management, the quarterly/year to date financial statements and
auditor’s report thereon, before submission to the Board for approval.

6. Reviewing with the Management, the financial statements of subsidiaries and in particular
the investments made by each of them.

7. Reviewing/Monitoring, with the Management, the statement of uses/application/end use of
funds raised through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.) and related
matters, the statement of funds utilized for purposes cther than those stated in the offer
document/prospectus/ notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring
the - utitization of the proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate
recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter.

8. Reviewing/evaluating, with the Management, performance of statutory and internal auditors,
internal financial controls, risk management system and adegquacy of the internal control
systems.

9. Reviewing the adsg

int Prnﬂ- audiit d




13. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in payment to the depositors, debenture
holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors.
14. To review the functioning of the Whistle- Blower mechanism.

15. Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e. the whole time Finance Director or any other person
heading the finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications,
experience and background, etc. of the candidate.

16. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit
Committee.

17. Review and monitor the Auditor's independence, performance and effectiveness of Audit
process.

18. Approval or any subsequent Modification of transactions of the company with related
pariies.

19. Scrutiny of inter- corporate loans and investments.

20. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary.

The Audit committee is empowered, pursuant to its terms of reference to:

» Investigate any activity within its terms of reference and to seek any information it requires
from any employee.

+ Obtain legal or other independent professional advice and to secure the attendance of
outsiders with relevant experience and expertise, wherever considered necessary.

TIL has systems and procedures in place to ensure that the Audit committee mandatorily
reviews:

« Management discussion and analysis of financial conditions and results of operations.

- Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the Audit committee),
submitted by management.

« Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors.

+ Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses.
« Appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief internal auditor.

« The uses/applications of funds raised through public issues, rights issues, preferential issues

by major category (capital expenditure, sales and marketing, working capital, etc), as part of

the quarterly declaration of financial results (whenever applicable).

+ On an annual basis, statement certified by the statutory auditors, detailing the use of funds
raised through public issues, rights issues, preferential issues for purposes other than those
stated in the offer document/prospectus/notice (whenever applicable)..

The composition of the Audit Committee and the details of meetings attended by the
Directors are given below:

Sr. No. Name Category
1. Mr. Parvinder Kumar NED (H
2. Mr. Praneet Kohli NED (I)
3. Mr. Vakamulla Chandrashekhar ED (P)

ED (P) — Executive Director (Promoter)

NED (i) - Non-Executive Director {independent)

i i b}’\nt of the Con §
investor's relations. The funotlo*‘nng and broac terms of reference of the Commmve includes
monitoring the work relating to fransfer/transmission of shares, dematerialization/ re-
materialization of shares, Redressal of complaints like transfer of shares, non-receipt of

Ralance Sheet etc.
\[% ‘
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Mr. Parvinder Kumar, the Chairman of the Committee and Mr. Praneet Kohli and Mr.
Vakamulla Chandrashekhar members of the committee are Independent Directors and
Executive Director of the Company. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of
the Shareholders, / Investors, Grievance Committee.

The Committee also recommends measures for overall improvement in the quality of investor
services. As there was no grievance of the shareholders, the committee did not have an
opportunity during the year.

The Committee performs the following functions:

* Transfer/ transmission of shares.

« Split up/ sub-division and consolidation of shares.

* Dematerialization/ re-materialization of shares.

* Issue of new and duplicate share certificates.

* Registration of Power of Attorneys, Probate, Letters of transmission or similar other
documents.

* To open/ close bank account(s) of the Company for depositing share/ debenture applications,
allotment and call monies, authorize operation of such account(s) and issue instructions to the
Bank from time to time in this regard.

» To ook into Redressal of shareholders’ and investors’ complaints like transfer of shares, no
receipt of annual report, non- receipt of declared dividends, etc.

This Committee consists of one Executive Director (Promoter) in the place of Non Executive
Director. To this extent there is non-compliance of provision of section 178 (1) of the
Companies Act 2013 and the refevant rules. The management is in the process of identifying a
suitable non executive Director who will be appointed in due course of time

3. Nomination & Remuneration Committee

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee determines the Company’s policy on all elements
of the remuneration payab%e to Executive Directors. The remuneration policy of the Company is
aimed at rewarding performance based on periodic review of achievements.

The Committee consisting of Mr. Parvinder Kumar as Chairman, Mr. Praneet Kohli &
Mr. V. Chandrashekhar as members of the committee. The Company Secretary acts as
the Secretary of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee.

This Committee consists of one Executive Director (Premoter) in the place of Non Executive
Director. To this extent there is non-compliance of provision of section 178 (1) of the
Companies Act 2013 and the relevant rules. The management is in the process of identifying a
suitable non executive Director who will be appointed in due course of time.

The roles and responsibilities of the commiittee include the following:

1. Formulate the criteria for detormmm qualifications, positive attributes and independence of

" a Director.

2. uocntny-m per\ous who are qualified to become directors and who may be a
e

ay med in
' accorgance with the criteria laid down, recommend to th

ppo
Board their

nd tn carry o

~

(D

ervices of consullants and seek their in the process of identifying
appointments to the Board.

o deccde the remuneration of consultants engaged by the Committee.

7. Framing, recommending to the Board and implementing, on behalf of the Board and on
behalf of the Shareholders, policy on remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Persons

T



(KMP) & other Employees, including ESOP, pension rights and any other compensation
payment.

8. To ensure that the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to
attract, retain and motivate directors and KMP of the quality required to run the company
successfully.

9. To ensure that Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate
performance benchmarks.

10. To ensure that Remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior
management involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term
performance objectives appropriate to the working of the company and its goals.

11. Considering, approving and recommending to the Board changes in designation and
increase in salary of the Directors, KMP and other employees.

12. Framing the Employees Share Purchase Scheme / Employees Stock Option Scheme and
recommending the same to the Board/ shareholders for their approval and implementing/
administering the scheme approved by the shareholders.

13. Suggesting to Board/ shareholders changes in the ESPS/ ESOS.

14. Deciding the terms and conditions of ESPS and ESOS which, inter alia, include the
following:

+ Quantum of options to be granted under the Scheme per employee and in aggregate;

+ Vesting Period;

+ Conditions under which option vested in employees may lapse in case of termination of
employment for misconduct;

+ Exercise period within which the employee should exercise the option and that option would
lapse on failure to exercise the option within the exercise period;

+ Specified time period within which the employee shall exercise the vested options in the event
of termination or resignation of employee;

+ Right of an employee to exercise all the options vested in him at one time or at various points
of time within the exercise period;

+ Procedure for making a fair and reasonable adjustment to the number of options, entitlement
of shares against each option and to the exercise price in case of rights issues, bonus issues
and other corporate actions;

» Grant, vest and exercise of option in case of employees who are on long leave;

* Procedure for cashless exercise of options;

* Forfeiture/ cancellation of options granted;

* All other issues incidental to the implementation of ESPS/ESOS.

+ To issue grant/ award letters.

* To allot shares upon exercise of vested options.

In accordance with the relevant provisions of Companies Act, 2013,the foliowing Policies/
Framework have been adopted by the Board upon recommendation of the Nominaticn and
Remuneration Committee:

1. Remuneration Pclicy relating to remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personne! and
other employees

2 Framework fu' evaluation of the Board, its committess and individual Board members
including Independent Direciors.
3 Pahcv on "p oint j
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The Nomination and Remuneration Committee recommends to the Board the compensation

package of the Executive Directors/KMPs and also the compensation payable to the Non-

Executive Directors of the Company in accordance with the provisions contained in the Act.

The Non-Executive Dneotors are paid sitting fees for atfeﬁdl..g the Meetings of the Board of
IH
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The key components of the Company’s Remuneration Policy are:

1. Remuneration Policy for the Executive Team

Guiding principles for remuneration and other terms of employment: The guiding principle is
that the remuneration and the other terms of employment for the Executives shall be
Competitive in order to ensure that the Tarini Group can attract and retain competent
Executives.

The principles for fixed salaries and variable salary: The Nomination and Remuneration
Committee shall recommend the remuneration structure of the Executives based on various
factors such as industry benchmarks, the Company’s performance, experience and expertise of
the Executive, responsibilities shouldered by him, his contributions in bringing strategic
upsurges and other economic factors appropriate to the working of the Company and it's long
term goals. The remuneration may be paid as salary, perquisites, allowances, incentives and
commission (Fixed or variable Component) within the overall ceiling approved by the
Shareholders of the Company.

Annual Enhancement of Remuneration: The annual enhancement in remuneration of the
executives shall be within the salary scale approved by the Shareholders of the Company.

2. Remuneration Policy for the Non- Executive and Independent Directors

The Non Executive and Independent Directors shall be paid sitting fees for attending meeting
of the Board, which may be revised from time to time within the overall limits specified by the
Companies Act, 2013.

The Company shall reimburse out-of-pocket expenses to Directors for attending the meeting
held at a City other than the one in which the Director resides.

Evaluation Criteria:

The Company has put in place the system for annual evaluation of Board as a whole, its
- . y
committee and Directors.

The performance of the Board will be evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from all the
Directors on the basis of the criteria such as the Board composition and structure, board
meetings and effectiveness of board processes, information and functioning, etc. The
performance of the committees will be evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from the
committee members on the basis of the criteria such as the compliance with the terms of
reference of the Committees, composition of committees, functions and duties, committee
meetings & procedures, etc.

The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (¢ NRC } reviews the
erformance of the individual Directors on the basis of the criteria such as the contribution of

the individual Director to the Board and committee mestings, attendance, independen
judgment etc. In addition, the Chairman wili also be evaluated on the basis of criteria such as
leadership, managing relationship, conducting board meetings etc.




Annexure IV

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or investments under section 186 of the

Companies Act, 2013 as on 31.03.2020

SI. No.

Name of the
Body
Corporate

Loans
given

Investments

Guarante
es
given

Aggregate as
on
31.03.2020

In subsidiaries

1.

Tarini Sugars
& Distillaries
Limited

6,67,64,445/-

53,59,000/-

NIL

7,21,23,445/-

Venture
Infrastructure
Limited

1,68,43,440/-

68,00,000/-

NIL

2,36,43,440/-

In JV/
Associate
S

3.

Tarini
Infrastructure
Limited

NIL

10,48,99,000/-

35,35,00,
000/-

45,83,99,000
/-

Tarini
Lifesciences
Limited

NIL

1,67,000/-

NiL

1,67,000/-

In others

5.

B. Soilmec
India Private
Limited

2,48,52,519/-

3,00,000/-

NiL

2,561,52,519/-

Venture
Energy &
Technologies
Limited

1,33,03,089/-

96,50,000/-

NIL

2,29,53,089/-

Tarini
Wilderness
[nnovations
Private
Limited

1,84,584/-

NIL

NiL

1,84,584/-
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Annexure V

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED
PARTIES REFERRED TO IN SECTION 188 (1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Form No. AOC - 2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2)

of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/ arrangements entered into by

the company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of
the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transactions under third

proviso thereto

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at
arm's length basis

Not Applicable

a | Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship
b | Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions
¢ | Duration of the contracts / arrangements / transactions
d | Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions
including the value, if any
e | Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or
transactions
f | Date(s) of approval by the Board
Amount paid as advances, if any
Date of which the special resolution was passed in general
meeting as required under
first proviso to section 188
2. | Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at
arm's length basis
a | Name(s) of the refated party and nature of relationship Tarini Infrastructure
Limited (Associate)
b | Nature of contracts / arrangements / transactions Equipment,
Maintenance and
Management
Contract
¢ | Duration oT the contracts / arrangements / transactions Valid up to
September 2047
d | Salie ms oi the contracts or arrangements or transactions | Maintenance of
mciw ng ne valueg, if any Equipments
e | Date(s) cf approval by the Board, if any
f | Amount paid as advances, if any NiL




Annexure VI

A. The information required under Section 197 of the Act read with rule 5(1) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014
are given below:

1. The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the
employees of the Company for the year 2019-20:

Sl. No. Name of the | Designation Ratio
Directors
1. : Mr. Vakamulla | Managing Director | N.A
Chandra Shekhar
2. Mrs. V. Anu Naidu Whole Time | 10:5.3
Director

The Non-Executive Independent Directors of the Company are entitled for sitting fees
and reimbursement of expenses as per the statutory provisions and are within the
prescribed limits.

2. There is no change in sitting fees of the Non-Executive Independent Directors during
the FY 2019-20.

3. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the
financial year:

The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year
was around 5%.

4. The number of permanent employees on the rolis of company: 42
5. The explanation on the relationship between average increase in remuneration
and company performance:

On an average, employees received an increase in remuneration of 3%-4%. The
revenue grew by 5% as compared to last year.

The increase in remuneration of employees is in line with the market trends and closely
linked to corporate performance, business performance and individual performance.

6. Comparison of the remuneration of the Key Managerial Personne! against the
petformance of the Company;

In the financial year 2019-20, there was a Decrease in the Profit after Tax. In view of this
no increase has been given to any empiovee of the company.

7. Va Company, price earnings ratio as
{ the i r and previous financial year and
percen 1e market quotations of the shares of the
Compa i vhi e Company came out with the last
public offer:
| Pericuiars As at a1® { Veriztion
5 2018 *
of | Rs. 4.41 Rs. {5.88;
EPS Rs. 0.18 Rs. 0.04 Rs. 0.15
Market Rs.5,73,21,180/- Rs.13,51,79,200/- Rs. (7,78,58,020)/-
Capitalization
Price Earnings | 23.21 260 (238.79)
Ratin




8. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other
than the managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with
the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof
and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the
managerial remuneration

The average increase in percentile of salaries of employees other than managerial
personnel in 2019-20 was 4%-5%. There was no increase in the Remuneration of
Directors.

10. The key parameters for any variable component of remuneration availed by the
directors:

There is no variable component of remuneration paid to the Directors.
11. The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid Director to that of the
employees who are not Directors but receive remuneration in excess of the

highest paid Director during the year: Not applicable.

12. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the
company: Yes, the remuneration is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company.

By Order of the Board of Directors

For Tagini International Limited A\//"\
M &\ \ MM — "

Vakamulla C andras'l:aTakBar V. Anu Naidu
Managing Director Whole Time Director
DiN 00073657 DIN 00073661

Date: 04.09.2020



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This report discusses and analyses the performance for the year ended 31st March
2020.

COVID pandemic has changed the world in a material way. Indian economy was already
going through difficult times and COVID has added to the woes of economy and citizens
of India Millions of people have lost jobs and thousands of SMEs have lost business.
Disposable income of Indian consumer has significantly declined. However as your
company is not dependent on individual customers and their spending capacity and the
income of the Company is stood as Rs 2.43 Crores.

Overall review of operations

The Company is in the business of engineering, consultancy, turnkey contracts in power
sector industry. The Company has recorded an Operationa! income of Rs.2.43 Crores.

Industry Structure and Development

Consultancy is a practice of giving expert advice within a particular field by professionals
or experts who advice in a particular area and has knowledge, well experienced,
problem solving skill and is expertise of the subject matter.

The Power sector in India is slowly moving from a regulated return framework to a
market driven pricing mechanism. This has provided a major boost for private
entrepreneurs to enter the Power Sector.

Opportunities and Threats

The Indian engineering and consultancy services industry is poised to grow in leaps and
bounds. There are more opportunities for this industry in the years to come keeping in
view the modernization policy envisaged by the Government of india. Our Company
being an integrated player providing turn-key services under one umbrella from
designing, construction, generation, transmission and distribution has lot of scope for
further work in the coming years.

ertinent to mention that there are lots of leading players in the market who are
. .

Future Duticck

The Power sector in India is slowly moving from a regulated return frame work to a

ket driven pricing machanism This )y
€1 ven phncing mecnanisin, 1his

1 v ¥ NS ' < i
{ un power projects, Our Cos




Risk & Concerns

The Company on regular basis reviews its Risk Management Policy and takes proactive
steps to safeguard and minimize any adversity related to the Market, Technology,
People, Environment/Regulatory, Financial and Opportunity Risks. Wherever necessary,
the Company takes adequate insurance coverage of its assets for safeguarding from
unforeseen risks.

Internal Control Systems and their Adequacy

The Company has adequate internal control system and well laid-down policies and
procedures for all its operations and financial functions. The procedures are aligned to
provide assurance for maintaining proper accounting controls, monitoring efficient and
proper usage of all its assets and reliability of financial and operational reports. The
internal control system is ably supported by the Internal Audit Department which carries
out extensive audit of various functions throughout the Company. The Company's Board
has an Audit Committee which comprises of three members, all of whom are
Independent Directors. The Audit Committee reviews significant findings of the internal
audit.

Human Resources/industrial Relations

The Company takes pride in the commitment, competence and dedication shown by its
employees in all areas of business. Various Human Resource initiatives are taken to
align the HR Policies to the growing requirements of the business.

The Company has a structured induction process and management development
programmes to upgrade skills of managers. Technical and safety training programmes
are given periodically to workers deputed at various project sites.

Industrial relations in the organization continued to be cordial during the year.

Cautionary Statement

Statements made in this report describing the Company's objectives, projections,
estimates, expectations may be “forward looking statements” within the meaning of
applicable securities laws and regulations. Actual results could differ materially from
those expressed or implied. Important factors that could make a difference to the
Company's operations include economic conditions affecting demand/supply and price
conditions in the domestic and overseas markets in which the Company operates,
changes in the Government regulations, tax laws and other statutes and incidental
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CEO /CFO CERTIFICATION

To
The Board of Directors
Tarini International Limited

a. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement of
Tarini International Limited for the year ended on 31* March 2020 and that
to the best of their knowledge and belief:

i. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit
any material fact or contain statements that might be misleading;

ii. these statements together present a true and fair view of the
Company's affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting
standards, applicable laws and regulations.

b. There are, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no transactions
entered into by the Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or
violative of the Company’s code of conduct.

c. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls
for financial reporting and we have evaluated the effectiveness of
Company’s internal control systems pertaining to financial reporting and we
have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the
design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which they are
aware and the steps they have taken or propose to take to rectify these
deficiencies.

d. We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee

i. that there are no significant changes in internal control over
financial reporting during the year,

i. that there are no significant changes in accounting policies
during the year; and

ii. that there are no instances of significant fraud of which we have

become aware.
* I «
/

A, C. Jain _ Vakamuita Chandra Shekhar
hief Finance Officer Managing Director
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_ CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
114/13, Amritpuri, East of Kailash, New Delhi-110065, Mob : 9425811241

HEAD OFFICE : P-2, Kalakar Street, 3rd Floor, Kolkata - 700007, PH.: 2274 4557

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
The Members of TARINI INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of TARINI
INTERNATIONAL LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as
at March 31, 2020, the Statement of profit and loss, cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as “the financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, except for the possible effect of matter described in Basis for qualified opinion
paragraph, the standalone financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the company as at March 31, 2020 and the Profit / Loss, and its cash flow for the
year ended on that date.

Basis for qualified opinion

We draw attention to note 31 to Financial Statement regarding the investment amounting
Rs.121.59 Lakhs in the subsidiaries, which has suffered recurring losses and has a net

capital deficiency. The financial statements of that subsidiary have been prepared assuming

that the Company will continue as a going concern. These conditions raise substantial
doubt about its ability to continue as a going concern. The standalone financial statements
do not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of asset
carrying amounts that might result that the subsidiary be unable to continue as a going
concern. Had the provision been made in the books of account, the profit before tax for the
year would have been converted into loss amounting to Rs. 77.03 Lakhs.

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the




financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Emphasis of Matters

l.

We draw attention to the note 20 of the standalone financial statements, which
describes the management’s assessment of impact of uncertainties related to outbreak
of COVID-19 on the business of the Company.

We draw attention to the note 21 of the standalone financial statements, in respect of
trade receivables and trade payables external confirmations of the balances were not
obtained by the Company. Due to non-availability of confirmation of balances, we are
unable to quantify the impact upon the profit for the year, if any, arising from the
confirmation of balances.

We draw attention to note 25 of the standalone financial statements that company has
given the collateral guarantee for the loan taken by its associate company / directors &
loans / advances granted amounting to Rs. 897.19 Lakhs (as on 31/03/2020) to group
companies / associated companies in which directors are interested; the company is yet
to comply within the provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

We draw attention to the note 29 of the standalone financial statements regarding the
provisional attachment of the farm house of the company by The Enforcement
Directorate under The Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002 against which the
company has obtained the stay from the High Court of Delhi.

We draw attention to the note 30 of the standalone financial statements regarding the
advance made of Rs. 59.16 Lakhs (equivalent Euro — 80,000/-) as share application
money during the year 2015-16, towards acquisition of 51% shares of HPWE GmbH.
Against such payment, share has not been allotted as the company could not make full
payment.

We draw attention to note 32 wherein The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(“SEBI”) has passed the order dated 29.03.2019 under section 11 and 11B of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,1992. The company has contested the said
order in the Securites Appellant Tribunal vide Appeal No. 179/2019, which has passed
an interim order dated 03.05.2019 for no coercieve action.

We draw attention to note 33 wherein The Adjudicating Officer, Securities and
Exchange Board of India has passed the order dated 10.02.2020 under section 15-I of
The Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992. The company has filed an
appeal against the said order in the Securities Appellant Tribunal.

Our Opinion is not qualified in respect of these matters.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters




were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
We have determined that there are no significant matters except for the matters described in
the basis of qualified opinion section and the Emphasis of matter section, that are required
to be disclosed here.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Director’s
Report including its Annexures, but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of
our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance for the
Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the
Act, read with relevant Rules issued thereunder. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and.for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board
of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.




Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.




We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

a)

b)

g)

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of
the Act, we give in the Annexure — A, a statement on the matters specified in the
paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and except for the matters described in the basis for qualified opinion
paragraph obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

Except for the possible effects of the matters described in the basis for qualified
opinion paragraph, in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have
been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Cash Flow
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

Except for the possible effects of the matters described in the basis for qualified opinion
paragraph, in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with
the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March
31, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified
as on March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of
the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of internal financial control over financial reporting of
the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in Annexure-B.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
provided to us, the remuneration paid by the company to its directors is in accordance
with the provisions of section 197 of the Act read with Schedule V of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

i.the Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements. Refer note 28 to the Financial Statements;

ii. the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses;




iii. there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For M. MODI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 319141E

Partner
Membership No. 546137

UDIN : 20546137AAAAAP8494

Place: New Delhi
Date: July 29, 2020



ANNEXURE - “A” REFERRED IN INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT OF
EVEN DATE

The Annexure referred to paragraph (1) in our Independent Auditors’ Report to the
members of the Company on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020,
we report that:

i.

iii.

a. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

b. A major portion of the fixed assets has been physically verified by the
management during the year pursuant to a programme for physical verification
of fixed assets, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of
the Company and the nature of its assets. According to the information and
explanations provided to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

c. According to the information and explanations provided to us, title deeds of
immovable properties are held in the name of the company.

As per the information and explanations provided to us, the company does not
have any inventory; therefore, the clause 3 (ii) (a), (b) & (c) of the Companies
(Auditors Report) Order, 2016 is not applicable to the company.

According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company has
granted interest bearing unsecured loan, to companies, firms or other parties
covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.
In respect of such loans;

a) In our opinion, the terms and conditions of the loans granted by the company
to 6 group companies aggregating to Rs. 1289.62 Lakhs as at March 31, 2020
are not prejudicial to the interest of the company.

b) The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has not been
stipulated; hence, we are unable to comment as to whether the repayment of
principal and payment of interest is regular.

c) As the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has not
been stipulated, we are unable to comment whether any amount is overdue and
whether reasonable steps have been taken by the company for recovery of
principal and interest thereupon.

According to the information and explanations provided to us, the company has
granted the loans, made investment, provided guarantees which outstanding as on
March 31, 2020. The company has not complied with the provisions of section 186
of the Companies Act, 2013.

According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company has
not accepted any deposit as per the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India
and the provisions  of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the




vi.

Vil.

viil.

ix.

Xl

Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under. No order against the
Company has been passed by the Company Law Board or National Company Law
Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any other Tribunal. Therefore,
the clause 3(v) of Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not
covered under specified category for the maintenance of cost records under Sub
Section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 as prescribed by the
Central Government, therefore, clause 3 (vi) of the Companies (Auditors Report)
Order, 2016 is not applicable to the company.

a. According to the records of the company and Information & explanation
provided to us, the Company, during the year, is generally regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, income tax, service tax and
other statutory dues, as applicable with the appropriate authorities except Rs.
11.59 Lakhs towards Service tax, Rs.92.56 lakhs towards Income Tax, Rs. 0.40
lakhs towards provident fund & Rs 46.95 Lakhs towards Goods & Service tax
and which was outstanding as on March 31, 2020 for more than six months.

b. According to the information and explanation given to us, there were no
disputed amounts payable in respect of income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty
of customs, value added tax or cess as at March 31, 2020 except for the

following:
S. Name of the Nature Amount Period to Forum where
No | Statute of (Rs.) which dispute is
Dues amount pending
relates
1 Income tax Act | Income 16,80,080 | A.Y.2013-14 CIT — Appeals
tax
2 Income tax Act | Income 12,26,350 | A.Y.2012-13 CIT — Appeals
tax
3 Income tax Act | Income 34,89,680 | A.Y.2011-12 CIT — Appeals
tax

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations provided to us,
the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to any financial institution or
bank or Government. The Company has not issued any debentures.

According to the information and explanations provided to us, the company has
not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments).

According to the information and explanations provided to us, no fraud by the
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees have been noticed or
reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations provided to us and based on the
audit procedures conducted by us, Remuneration has been paid or provided to a
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director in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of
section 197 read with schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

[n our opinion and according to the information and explanations provided to us,
the Company is not a Nidhi Company, therefore, clause 3 (xii) of the Companies
(Auditors Report) Order, 2016 is not applicable to the company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations provided to us,
all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188
of Companies Act, 2013, where applicable and the details have been disclosed in
the Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations provided to us, the company has
not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertible debentures during the year, therefore, clause 3 (xiv) of the
Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 is not applicable to the company.

According to the information and explanations provided to us, the company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected
with them, therefore, clause 3 (xv) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order,
2016 is not applicable to the company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations provided to us,
the Company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934.

For M. MODI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 319141E

/@\V
SOURAY MODI
Partner

Membership No. 546137

UDIN : 20546137AAAAAP8494

Place: New Delhi
Date: July 29, 2020



ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN
DATE ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARINI INTERNATIONAL
LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i)
of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Tarini
International Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our
audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.




We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over
financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on
our audit, the following material weaknesses have been identified as at March 31, 2020:

The Company did not have appropriate internal financial controls over (a) Assessment of
impairment in value of long term equity investment and assessment of impairment in value
of loans and advances to various parties, (b) Control over reconciliation of Creditors
balances or other advances, (c) Control over the statutory compliances, (d) Assessment of
expected cash requirement for the timely payment of statutory dues such as Income tax,
Service tax, GST, and PF etc.

The inadequate supervisory and review control over Company’s process in respect of
aforesaid assessment in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India could potentially result in a material misstatement in preparation and presentation of
financial statement including the profit/loss after tax.




A ‘material weakness’ is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial
control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the company's annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented
or detected on a timely basis.

Qualified opinion

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of material weaknesses described in “basis of
qualified opinion” paragraph above, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

We have considered the material weaknesses identified and reported above in determining
the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on March 31, 2020, and these material
weaknesses have affected our opinion on the standalone financial statements of the
Company and we have issued a qualified opinion on the standalone financial statements

For M. MODI & ASSOCAITES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 319141E

OURAV MODI

Partner
Membership No. 546137

UDIN : 20546137AAAAAP8494

Place: New Delhi
Date: July 29, 2020




TARINI INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
CIN : L74899DL1999PL.C097993
Balance Sheet as at March 31 2020

Particulars Note For the year ended For the year ended
No. March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
| EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS
Share capital 2 129,980,000 129,980,000
Reserves and surplus 3 174,069,884 171,605,671
304,049,884 301,585,671
2. NON-CURRENT LIABLITIES
Loong-term borrowings 4 19,261,860 27,184,140
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 5 936,747 -
Long-term provisions 6 1,414,133 4,283,865
Total non-current liabilities 21,612,740 31,468,005
3. CURRENT LIABILITIES
Short-term borrowings 4 28,035,658 28,400,083
Other current liabilities 7 26,544,845 34,141,322
Short term provision 6 8,435,678 10,031,407
Total Current liabilities 63,016,181 72,572,812
TOTAL 388,678,806 405,626,488
1 ASSETS
I. NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property. plant and equipment 8
- Tangible assets 56,957,498 53,254,296
- Intangible assets 9,474 9,474
- Capital work in progress - 11,784,088
Non-current investments 9 128,018,726 127,871,707
Deferred tax asset (net) 5 - 171,947
Long-term loans and advances 10 1,637,580 1,637,580
Other non-current assets 11 5,916,000 5,916,000
Total non-current assets 192,539,278 200,645,091
2. CURRENT ASSETS
Trade Receivable 12 45,827,760 49,505,760
Cash and cash equivalents 13 1,244,154 4,648,607
Short-term loans and advances 10 149,067,614 150,827,029
Total current assets 196,139,528 204,981,396
TOTAL 388,678,806 405,626,488

Significant Accounting Policies (Refer Note 1) and various notes on Financial Statements are an integral part

of Financial statements

As per our report of even date attached.

For M. MOD1 & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 319141E

Sourdv Modi
Partner
Membership Number : 546137

Place: New Delhi
Date: July 29. 2020

For and on behalf of the Board

Ao

V Chandrashekhar
Managing Director

DIN - 00073657

:‘é?gw,’/
A. [C. Jain

C.F.O.

/)(Mﬁ :

V. Anu Naidu
Director
DIN 73661

rora

Company Secretary



TARINI INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

CIN : L74899DL1999PLC097993

Statement of profit and loss for the Year ended on March 31, 2020

Particulars Note For the year ended For the year ended
No. March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
Income
Revenue from operations 14 3,600,000 8,500,000
Other income 15 20,721,330 13,902,376
Total revenue 24,321,330 22,402,376
Expenses
Employee benefit expenses 16 9,201,887 11,406,982
Finance costs 17 4,174,357 4,518,565
Depreciation and amortization expense 8 1,717,367 1,609,284
Other expenses 18 4,771,575 4,159,712
Total expenses 19,865,186 21,694,543
Profit/ (Loss) before taxation 4,456,143 707,833
Tax expense:
Current year 883,236 619,800
Deferred tax 1,108,694 (381,261)
Total tax expenses 1,991,930 238,539
Net profit for the year 2,464,213 469,293
Earning per Equity Share of Rs 10 each
Basic and Diluted (Rupees) 19 0.19 0.04

Significant Accounting Policies (Refer Note 1) and various notes on Financial Statements are an integral part of

Financial statements

As per our report of even date attached.

For M. MODI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 319141E

e

Souriv Modi
Partner
Membership Number : 546137

Place: New Delhi
Date: July 29, 2020

For and on behalf of the Board

Al gt

V Chandrashekhar
Managing Director
DIN - 00073657

T
A.[C. Jain
C.F.O.

P«f :

V. Anu Naidu
Director
DIN - 73661

Am#Arora
Company Secretary



Tarini International Limited

CIN :L.74899DL1999PL.C097993
Cash flow statement for the Year ended March 31, 2020

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars As at As at
March 30, 2020 March 31,2019
A. Cash flow from Operating Activities
Profit Before Tax 4,456,143 707,833
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 1,717,367 1,609,284
Interest expenses 2,770,225 3,607,630
Interest income (10,980,193) (12,273,730)
Operating profit before working capital changes (2,036,457) (6,348,983)
Working Capital Changes
Decrease/(Increase) in current assets 5,437,415 (18,340,661)
Increase/(Decrease) in current liabilities (10,830,635) 32,411,282
Cash flow from Operating Activities (A) (7,429,677) 7,721,638
B. Cash flow from Investing Activities
(Purchase)/Sale of fixed assets 6,457,784 2,277,073
Investment purchase (147,019) 278,406
Capital expenditure - (620,000)
Interest income 10,980,193 12,273,730
Cash flow from Investing Activities (B) 17,290,958 14,209,209
C. Cash flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds/(Repayment) of secured Loan (10,495,149) (14,259,566)
Interest expenses (2,770,225) (3,607,630)
Cash flow from Financing Activities (C) (13,265,374) (17,867,157)
Net Increase In Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) (3,404.093) 4,063,650
Opening cash & cash equivalents 4,648,607 584,957
Closing cash & cash equivalents 1,244,514 4,648,607

Note:

1. The Cash flow statement is preared under ' indirect method ' as set out in Accounting Standard -3 on Cash flow
statemnets as specified in the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006.

2. Cash & Cash equivalents represents:

-Cash on hand 1,084,801 290,236
-Balance with Scheduled bank in Current accounts 159,353 4,358,371
Total 1,244,154 4,648,607

As per our report of even date attached.

Eor and on behalf of the Board
ceqlded o P
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Chartered Accountants

gistration No. 319141E Vakamulla Chandrashekhar V. Anu Naidu
Managing Director
T DIN-00073657
Partner o,&,
Membership Number : 346137 A. . Jain
C.F.O.

Place : New Delhi
Date: July 29. 2020



TARINI INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies and Notes forming part of the financial statements

L.

I1.

Company Background

Tarini International Limited hereinafter referred to as ("the Company") is engaged in the business of Turnkey
Contractors & Consultancy in Power Generation, Transmission & Distribution and other EPC contracts.

Significant accounting policies

Basis of accounting and preparation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on an accrual basis in accordance
with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (Indian GAAP) and accounting standards specified under section
133 read with Rule 7 of Company Account Rule, 2014 and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The
accounting policies have been consistently applied by the company and are consistent with those used in the
previous year.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the balances of assets and liabilities and disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as at
the reporting date of the financial statements and amounts of income and expenses during the period of account.
Examples of such estimates include provision for doubtful debts, income taxes and future obligations under
employee retirement benefit plans. Management periodically assesses whether there is an indication that an asset
may be impaired and makes provision in the accounts for any impairment losses estimated. Contingencies are
recorded when it is probable that a liability will be incurred, and the amount can be reasonably estimated. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipments are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost
comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended
use. Borrowing costs relating to acquisition of fixed assets during construction period included to the extent they
relate to the period till such assets are ready to be put to use.

Depreciation / Amortisation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided to the extent of depreciable amount on Straight Line
method (SLM) at the rates and in the manner prescribed in Schedule IT to the Companies Act, 2013 over their useful
life. In respect of the additions made or assets sold / discarded during the year, prorata depreciation has been
provided.

Impairment of assets

The carrying value of assets at each balance sheet date are reviewed for impairment. If any indication of the
impairment exist, the recoverable amount of such assets is estimated and impairment is recognised, if the carrying
amount of these assets exist their recoverable amount. the recoverable amount is the greater of net selling prince and
their value in use. Value in use is arrived at by discounting the future cash flow to their present value based on the
appropriate discount factor. When there is indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset in earlier
accounting period no longer exists or may have decreased, such reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.




F Investments

Investments that are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than a year are classified as "Current
investments". All other investments are classified as "Long-term investments". Current investments are carried at
lower of cost and fair value. Long-term investments are carried at cost less provision for diminution other than
temporary in value of such investments. Dividend Income is accounted when the right to receive dividend is
established.

G Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition and construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of
cost of such assets till such time the asset is ready for its intended use. A qualifying asset is one that requires
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of
Profit and Loss as period costs.

H Contingent Liability & Provisions

A provision is recognized when there is a present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made.
Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the
obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimates.

Contingent liability is disclosed for

a) Possible obligation which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the

Company or

b) Present obligations arising from the past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

c) Contingent Assets are not recognized in the financial statements since this may result in the recognition of income
that may never be realized.

I Foreign Currency transactions

Initial Recognition
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the
exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Conversion

All loans and deferred credits repayable in foreign currency and outstanding at the close of the year are expressed in
Indian currency at the date prevailing at the balance sheet date.

Exchange Differences

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting of such monetary items at rates
different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial

statements, are recognized as income or as expenses in the year in which they arise.
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Retirement and other employee benefits
Employee benefits include Provident fund, Gratuity fund and compensated absences.

i) Defined contribution plans - The contribution to the Provident fund is considered as defined contribution and is
charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made.

ii) Defined benefit plans - For defined benefit plans in the form of gratuity fund, the cost of providing benefits is
determined on the basis of airthemetic calculations at each balance sheet date.

iil) Short-term employee benefits - The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid
in exchange for the services rendered by employees are recognised during the period when employee render the
service. These benefits include performence incentive and compensated absences which are expected to occur within
twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related service. The cost of short term
compensated absences is accounted, in case of non accumulating compensated absences, when the absence occur.

Revenue recognition

Revenue has been recognized in accordance with Accounting Standard-9 issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

Leases

a) Finance Lease

Leases which effectively transfer to the Company all risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item are
classified as Finance Lease. Lease rentals are capitalized at the lower of the fair value and present value of the
minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease term and disclosed as leased assets. Lease payments are
apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability based on the implicit rate of return.

b) Operating Lease
Lease where the lesser effectively retains substantially all risks and benefits of the asset are classified as Operating
lease. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the Profit & Loss account on a Straight Line Basis
over the Lease term.

Earnings per share

In arriving at the EPS, the Company’s net profit/ loss after tax, computed in terms of the Indian GAAP, is divided by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding on the last day of the reporting period. The EPS thus
arrived at is known as ‘Basic EPS’. To arrive at the diluted EPS, the net profit / loss after tax, referred above and the
weighted average number of equity shares, as computed above and the weighted average number of equity shares
that would have been issued on conversion of shares having potential dilutive effect subject to the terms of issue of
those potential shares. The dates’ of issue of such potential shares determine the amount of the weighted average
number of potential equity shares.

In the event of issue of bonus shares, or share split the number of equity shares outstanding is increased without an
increase in the resources. The number of Equity shares outstanding before the event is adjusted for the proportionate
change in the number of equity shares outstanding as if the event had occurred at the beginning of the earliest period
reported.




N Income taxes

Current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year. A provision is made
for income tax annually based on the tax liability computed, after taking into consideration of tax allowances and
exemptions. Provisions are recorded when it is estimated that a liability due to disallowances or other matters are
probable.

As per Accounting Standard 22 issued by Institute of Chartered Accountant of India, deferred tax liability / assets is
recognized subject to prudence, on timing differences, being reversal in one or more subsequent periods. Deferred
tax asset are recognized only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets can be realized in future.
However, where there is unabsorbed depreciation or carried forward of losses, deferred tax assets are recognized
only is a virtual certainty of realization of such asset.




TARINI INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes on Financial Statements

(Amount in Rs.)

As at March 31,2020 As at March 31,2019

NOTE 2 - SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised

1,35.00.000 (Previous period- 1,35,00,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each

Total

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up

12,998,000 (Previous period- 12,998,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid

Total

135,000,000 135,000,000
129,980,000 129,980,000
129,980,000 129,980,000

The company has only one class of equity shares having a face value of Rs. 10/ per share and each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per

share. The dividend proposed, it any, by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of shareholders in ensuing Annual General Meeting.

i In the event of liquidation, the holders of the equity shares will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all
preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

Recongciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:-

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

Equity Shares

Ed

Number of outstanding shares at the beginning of the year 12,998,000 12,998,000
Shares issued during the year - -
Number of outstanding shares at the end of the year 12,998,000 12,998,000
The details of shareholders holding more than 5 percent shares:-

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

Name of the Shareholder

No. of Shares Percentage held

No. of Shares Percentage held

Mr. Vakamulla Chandrashekhar 7,018,281 53.99 7,018,281 53.99
Mrs. Anu Naidu 2,001,565 15.40 2,001,565 15.40
NOTLE 3 - RESERVES AND SURPLUS
As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31,2019
Securities Premium Account:
As per last Balance Sheet 135,449,314 135,449,314
135,449,314 135,449,314
General Reserve:
As per last Balance Sheet 36,156,357 35,687,064
Add: Transterred from Profit & loss 2,464,213 469,293
38,620,571 36,156,357
Profit & Loss:
Net profit after tax during the period 2,464,213 469,293
Less:
Transter to general reserve (2,464,213) - (469,293) -
174,069,884 171,605,671
Y O
€ .




(Amount in Rs.)
Notes on Financial Statements

NOTE 4 - LONG / SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Long-term Short-term Long-term Short-term
Secured
Term loans
- From banks 21,129,678 - 29,104,923 -
21,129,678 - 29,104,923 -
Unsccured
Loans and advances from related parties 2,605,000 28,035,658 5,136,153 28,400,083
2,605,000 28,035,658 5,136,153 28,400,083
Less:- - Current maturities of long term debts 4472818 - 7,056,936 -
Total 19,261,860 28,035,658 27,184,140 28,400,083
From Banks
Loan (Rs in Security Interest Repayment Terns
Lacs)

57.97 |ICICI Bank Limited - Secured by F-33. 1l nd Floor . Block-F, East of kailash,
New Delln

1-Base(8.75%)+ 3.25%
=12% p.a. payable

Repayable in monthly instalments of Rs 2,58,248 for 120
months starting from 10.05.2011

111,18 |Karur Vysya Bank Ltd -OD a/c convered to Loan on 18/01/2018 2.45% over & above the
MCL Rate of the bank as
applicable. Effective ROI

for the year 11.45% p.a

Repayable in monthly instalments of Rs 3,21,159 for 84
months starting from Feb 2018

42.15 |ICICI Bank Limited- Secured by F-33, 11 nd Floor. Block- F. East of Kailash,
New Delln

10.75% p.a payable Repayable in monthly instalments of Rs 81,804 for 120
pay

months starting from 05.12.2015

NOTE 5 - DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)
As at Mareh 31,2020 As at March 31, 2019

a) Deferred tax assets

- Employee benetits 392,442 1,209,893

- Provision disallowed 1,481,153 147,393

Total 1,873,596 1,357,286
b) Deferred tax liabilities

- Depreciation 2,810,343 1,185,340

Total 2,810,343 1,185,340

Net deferred tax liability/(asset) 936,747 (171,947)
NOTE 6 - PROVISIONS

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

Long-term

Short-term

Long-term

Short-term

Provision for Employee Benefits

- Gratuity 1,213,581 95,261 3,725,541 414,749
- Leave 200,552 - 558,324 -
Others

- Taxation - 8,340,417 - 9,616,658
Total 1,414,133 8,435,678 4,283,865 10,031,407




Notes on Financial Statements

(Amount in Rs.)

NOTE 7 - OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

As at March 31,2020 As at March 31,2019
- Current maturities ot long term debts 4,472,818 7,056,936
- Taxes and other statutory dues 6,339,922 5,608,880
- Employee dues 5,620,932 5,609,247
- Others' 10,111,173 15,866,259
Total 26,544,845 34,141,322
" Others include non trade paybles
NOTE 9 - NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS
As at March 31,2020 As at March 31,2019
Long-Term Investments
Unguoted
Non - Trade
Tarini Sugar & Distillaries Limited (Subsidiary) 5,359,000 5,359,000
535.900 (Previous period - 535,900) Equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid-up
Venture Infrastructure Limited (Subsidiary) 6,800,000 6,800,000
680.000 (Previous period - 680,000) Equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid-up
Tarini Infrastructure Limited (Associate) 104,899,000 104,899,000
84,36.000 (Previous period- 84,36,000) Equity shares of Rs10 each,fully paid-up
10,26,950 (Previous period- 10,26,950) Equity shares of Rs10 each,fully paid-up at
premium ot Rs. 10 per share _
B.Soilmec (India) Private Limited (Associate) 300,000 300,000
30.000 (Previous period- 30,000) Equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid-up
Tarini Lifesciences Limited (Associated) 167,000 167,000
16.700 (Previous period- 16,700) Equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid-up
Fixed Deposit* 843,726 696,707
Share application mouney
Venture Energy & Technologies Limited** 9,650,000 9,650,000
128,018,726 127,871,707

* fixed deposit against loan with the bank having maturity date beyond 12 months

#%Allotment is pending at the end of investee company as their matter of revival of project is subjudice before High Court of Himachal Pradesh

- Aggregate amount of unquoted investments - Rs. 11,75,25,000 (Previous period - Rs. 11,75,25,000)

NOTE 10 - LOANS AND ADVANCES
(unsccured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31,2019
Long-term Short-term Long-term Short-term

Security deposits 1,637,580 - 1,637,580 -
Asset Held for Sale (net ot’ Accumulated - - - 660,706
Depreciation)
Loan and advances to related parties - 128,962,345 - 126,769,101
- Advance tax (Net of not current - 8,968,527 - 10,770,510
provision of taxes)
- Dues from employees - 546,050 - 657,025
- Unsecured - considered good - 10,590,692 - 11,969,687

1,637,580 149,067,614 1,637,580 150,827,029
Total 1,637,580 149,067,614 1,637,580 150,827,029

kkwf“/
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Notes on Financial Statements

{Amount in Rs.)

NOTE 11 - OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

As at March 31,2020 As at March 31,2019
Advance against allotment of Shares 5,916,000 5,916,000
Total 5,916,000 5,916,000
NOTE 12 - TRADE RECEIVABLE
As at March 31,2020 As at March 31, 2019
(Unsecured, considered good)
More than six months (aggregate amount of trade receivables outstanding for a 44,027,760 47,145,760
period exceeding six months from the date they are due for payment)
Less than six month (aggregate amount of trade receivables outstanding for a 1,800,000 2,360,000
period exceeding six monihs from the date they are due for payment)
Total 45,827,760 49,505,760
NOTE 13 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
As at March 31,2020 As at March 31,2019
Cash-on-hand 1,084,801 290,236
Balances with scheduled banks 159,353 4,358,371
Total 1,244,154 4,648,607
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NOTE 14 - REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

(Amount in Rs.)

As at March 31,  As at March 31,
2020 2019
Income from contract 3,600,000 8,500,000
Total 3,600,000 8,500,000
NOTE 15 - OTHER INCOME
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2020 2019
Interest income 10,980,193 12,273,730
Agricultural income - 719,000
Rental Income - 333,400
Profit on sale of property 6,457,784 -
Other income 94,132 576,246
Excess provision written off 3,189,220 -
Total 20,721,330 13,902,376

NOTE 16 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

2020. 2019
Salaries , wages etc 8,948,214 10,693,915
Contribution to provident fund & other funds 216,858 696,396
Staft welfare expenses 36.815 16,671
Total 9,201,887 11,406,982

Note: The contributions payable to Provident fund by the Company are at rates specified in the the provident fund

scheme.

NOTE 17- FINANCE COST

As at March 31,  As at March 31,

2020 2019
Interest expense 2,770,225 3,607,630
Interest on delayed payment of taxes 1,396,796 877,578
Bank charges 7,336 33,357
Total 4,174,357 4,518,565




NOTE 18 - OTHER EXPENSES

share) (Rs.)

1f

As at March 31, As at March 31,
2020 2019
Legal and professional 1,492,650 995,500
Power and fuel 374,779 443,193
Travelling and Conveyance 953,296 338,913
Agricultural expenses 443,932 296,806
Fee and filing 379,586 254,870
Auditors' remuneration
- Audit fee 160,000 160,000
- Tax audit fee 35,000 35,000
- Limited review fee 75,000 75,000
Telephone and internet 142,095 136,662
Repairs to plant and machinery 244,371 84,185
Printing. stationary and courier 126,160 16,738
Insurance 33,366 2,844
Loss on sale of assets - 792,238
Miscellaneous 311,340 527,763
Total 4,771,575 4,159,712
NOTE 19 - EARNING PER SHARE
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2020 2019
Profit / (Loss) after tax as per profit and loss account (Rs.) 2,464,213 469,293
Weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding 12,998,000 12,998,000
{(Nos.)
Earnings per share - basic / diluted (face value - Rs. 10 per 0.19 0.04




ADDITIONAL NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:
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Subsequent to the outbreak of Coronavirus (COVID-19), consequential lock down across the country, disruptions to businesses worlwode and
economic slowdown may have its eventual impact on Company. A definitive assessment of the impact is not possible in view of the highly
uncertain economic environment and the scenario is still evolving. The Company has evaluated its liquidity position and of recoverability and
carrying values of its assets and have concluded that no material adjustments required at this stage in the financial statements.

In the opinion of the management the balances shown under receivables, loans and advances and other assets whether current or non current,
have approximately the same realizable value as shown in the accounts. However these balance are subject to confirmation.

The Management is of the opinion that as at the end of the reporting period, there are no indications of a material impairment in the value of
property, plant and equipment. Hence, the need to provide for an impairment loss does not arise.

There is no separate reportable segment in accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standard 17 'Segment Reporting' issued by the
Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 in view of company's activities during the year are in one segment. The company is not
operating in any of the geographical segment.

The company has not received any information from suppliers / creditors regarding their status under Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises
development Act, 2006,

During the year 2011-2012, the company has provided its immovable property as equitable mortgage towards the term loan taken by the other
associate company in which the company is holding shares more than 10% and the personal loan taken by its director.The necessary filing with
regard to approval from Central Government and certain compliances according to the provisions of the Companies Act are pending.
However.the terms and condition of said term/personal loan taken by the other associate company / founder directors, in view of the
management, are not prejudicial to the interest of the company.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, a survey was conducted under Section 133A of the Income Tax Act, 1961 by the Income Tax
Authorities in the Company's premises and certain documents were impounded. The Income Tax Authorities were pursuing for centralisation of
the tax proceedings with another party. The company protested and The Hon'ble Supreme Court dismissed the petition of Income Tax
Department. The documents so impounded are yet to be released by the Income Tax Department.

A Subsidiary company has entered into joint venture aggreement with M/s Cobra Instalaciones Y servicos S.A. a company incorporated under
the law of spain to design, manufacture supply, Installation & commissioning of 2x60mva 132/33KV substation at Osoglo, Nigeria. The work
at this project is yet to be commenced. The expenditure incurred to obtain such project has been accounted and kept under deferred expenses.
There is no expenditure incurred during the year.

Contingent Libility not provided for Amount (Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31,| As at March
2020 31,2019

1) Income tax demand under Appeal 63.96 63.96

2) Against loan availed by a group company and promoter directors on equitable mortgage 490.72 398.19

of property of the company (value of property mortgaged is considered)

During the month of October, 2017, The Enforcement Directorate has passed an order for provisional attachment of the farm house of the
company for 180 days under The Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002. The Hon'ble High Court has stayed the provisional attachment
order passed by Enforcement Directorate vide its order dated March 06, 2018.

Pursuant to the Share Acquisition agreement between Hydro Power & Holding Experts GmbH (herein after referred as HPWE) 51% shares of
HPWE was to acquire by the company and accordingly part payment of Euro 80,000 (equivalent to INR 59.16 Lakhs) has been made during
the year 2014-15. Due to bad economic situation, shares has not been allotted against share application money and the said money stands as
advance as on March 31, 2020

The accumulated losses of two subsidiaries have eroded its net worth as at March 31,2020. The management of the subsidiaries are confident
of improvement in the company's future operations and the financial statement have been prepared on going concern basis. The company is of
view that the investment in the company amounting to Rs.121.59 lakhs is a long term investment and no provision for diminution in the value
ol investment is necessary.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) has passed the order dated 29.03.2019 under section 11 and 11B of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act,1992. The company has contested the said order in the Securites Appellant Tribunal vide Appeal No. 179/2019,
which has passed an interim order dated 03.05.2019 for no coercieve action. ’

The Adjudicating Officer, Securities and Exchange Board of India (“AO-SEBI”) has passed the order dated 10.02.2020 under section 15-1 of
The Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992. The company has filed an appeal against the said order in the Securities Appellant
Tribunal.
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a) Employee Benefit Plan

For the year ended March 31, 2020

Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2019
Gratuity Earned leaves Gratuity Earned leaves
Unfunded Unfunded Unfunded Unfunded
1. Change in the present value of obligation during the
year
Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the year 4,140,290 558,324 3,775,640 318,324
Interest cost 279,884 - 244,745 -
Current service cost 213,061 299,668
Benefits paid - - - -
Acturial (gain)/loss on obligation (3,324,393) (357,772) (179,763) 240,000
Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 1,308,842 200,552 4,140,290 558,324
2. Net assets (liability) recognised in the balance sheet
present value of Defined benefit obligation 1,308,842 200,552 4,140,290 558,324
Fair value of plan assets - - - -
Net assets/(liabilities) (1,308,842) (200,552) (4,140,290) (558,324)
Further classification
Long-term provisions 1,213,581 200,552 3,725,541 558,324
Short-term provisions 95,261 - 414,749 -
Other current liabilities - - - -
Other current assets - - - -
3. Expense recognised in Profit and Loss account
Current service cost 213,061 - 299,668 -
Interest cost 279,884 - 244,745 -
Net acturial (gain) loss recognised in the year (3,324,393) (357,772) (179,763) -
Reversal of gratuity taken on arithmetical basis - - - -
Total expenses (2,831,448) (357,772) 364,650 -
4. Assumption
i) Discounted rate 8 - 8 -
i) Salary escalation rate 6 - 6 -
b) Demographic Assumption
i) Retirement Age (Years) 60 - 60 -
ii) Mortality Table [ALM (2012-14) - IALM (2006-08) -
iii) Ages (Withdrawal Rate (%) )
Upto to 30 years 3.00 - 3.00 -
From 31 to 44 years 2.00 - 2.00 -
Above 44 Years 1.00 - 1.00 -

b) In accordance with the payments of Gratuity Act, 1972 the company provides for the gratuity covering eligible employees. The liability on
account of gratuity is covered on the basis of valuation of the liabilities by an independent actuary as at the Year end.

¢) The company makes contribution to Provident Fund, which are defined contribution plans, for qualifying employees. Under the schemes, the
company is required to contribution a specified percentage of the payroli cost to fund the benefits. The Company recongnised Rs. 2,07,365/-
(previous year Rs. 3.31,746/-) for Provident Fund Contributions,in the statement of Profit and Loss. The contribution payable to these plan by

the company are at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.
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Related Party Disclosures:

Key Management Personnel

1) Vakamulla Chandrashekhar - Managing Director, 3) A. C. Jain - Chief Financial officer

2) V. Anu Naidu - Director 4) Amit Arora - Company Secretary

Subsidiaries -

1) M/s Tarini Sugar & Distillaries Limited 2) M/s Venture Infrastructure Limited

Enterprises over which directors exercise significant influence / control

1) M/s Tarini Infrastructure Limited. (Associate) 5) M/s Venture Energy & Technology Limited.

2) M/s B.Soilmec India Private Limited. 6) M/s Tarini Life Scienses Limited (Associate)

3) M/s Tarini Humanitarian Demining and Rehabilition Works 7) M/s Tarini Wilderness & Innovations Private Limited

4) M/s Tarini Overseas Mining and Operation Limited.
Amount (Rs.

Particulars As at March 31, As at March
2020 31,2019

Maintainence Income
Tarini Infrastructre Limited 3,600,000 8,500,000
Interest Income
Tarini Sugars & Distilleries Limited 5,925,957 6,800,481
Venture Energy & Technologies Limited 1,044,053 1,223,183
B.Soilmec India Private Limited 2,102,747 2,205,257
Tarini Infrastructre Limited 756,000 756,000
Directors' Remuneration
V. Anu Naidu 1,200,000 1,200,000
Unsccured Borrowing Repaid/(Loans and Advances received back)
Tarini Overseas Mining and Operations Limited. - 57,060
V. Anu Naidu 2,223,964 7,637,655
V. Chandrashekhar 823,147 -
Tarini Lifesciences Limited 2,050 63,990
Tarini Sugars & Distilleries Limited (7,231,623) (489,385)
Tarini Wilderness & Innovation Private Limited (295,396) (3,224,441)
(Unsecured borrowings received)/Loans and advances given
B.Soilmec India Private Limited 647,507 61,200
Venture Energy & Technologies Limited - (6,675)
Tarini Humanitarian Demining and Rehabilitation Works - 15170
Tarini Sugars & Distilleries Limited - 40,000
V. Chandrashekhar - 345,282
Venture Infrastructure Ltd. - 315,243

Closing Balance at the vear end.

Receivable/ (Pavable)

Vakamulla Chandrashekhar (3,113,879) (3,937,025)
V. Anu Naidu (7,097,735) (4,758,936)
Tarini Infrastructure Limited current A/c (27,513,119) (22,875,494)
Tarini Infrastructure Limited Loan A/c 7,000,000 7,000,000
Venture Infrastructure Limited 16,843,440 16,843,440
B.Soilmec India Private Limited 24,852,519 22,102,265
Tarini Sugars & Distilleries Limited 66,764,445 68,070,110
Tarini Overseas Mining and Operations Limited. (305,401) (305,401)
Venture Energy & Technologies Limited 13,303,089 12,259,035
Tarini Wilderness & Innovation Private Limited 184,584 479,980
Tarini Lifesciences Limited (217,138) (219,188)
Tarini Humanitarian Demining and Rehabilitation Works 14,270 14,270

Figures for the previous period have been regrouped /rearranged wherever considered necessary to make them conform to the figures for the

year as per Schedule 11,
As per our report of even date attached. . For and on behalf of the Boar
For M. MODI & ASSOCIATES ¢ .‘ — i
Chartered Accountants V Chan ashekhar - V. Anu Naidu

Firm Repistration No. 31914 1E Director
DIN - 00073657

~
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C.F.

Partner
Membership Number : 546137

Company Secretary

Place: New Dclhi
Date: July 29, 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Members of TARINI INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated financial statements of TARINI
INTERNATIONAL LIMITED (Herein after referred to as the “Holding Company”), and
its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”),
which comprise the consolidated Balance sheet as at March 31, 2020, the consolidated
Statement of profit and loss, the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, except for the possible effect of matter described in Basis for qualified opinion
paragraph, the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements give the information required by
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of their
consolidated state of affairs of the company as at March 31, 2020 and of the consolidated
Profit / Loss, and its consolidated cash flow for the year then ended.

Basis for qualified opinion

We draw attention to note 35 to Financial Statement regarding the investment made
amounting to Rs.121.59 Lakhs in a subsidiary, who has suffered recurring losses and has a
net capital deficiency. The financial statements of that subsidiary have been prepared
assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern. These conditions raise
substantial doubt about its ability to continue as a going concern. The financial statements of
holding company do not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and
classification of asset carrying amounts that might result that the subsidiary be unable to
continue as a going concern.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of




Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matters

1.

(OS]

We draw attention to the note 24 of the consolidated financial statements, which
describes the management’s assessment of impact of uncertainties related to outbreak of
COVID-19 on the business of the Company.

We draw attention to the note 25 of the consolidated financial statements, in respect of
trade receivables and trade payables external confirmations of the balances were not
obtained by the Company. Due to non-availability of confirmation of balances, we are
unable to quantify the impact upon the profit for the year, if any, arising from the
confirmation of balances.

We draw attention to the note 29 of the consolidated financial statements, that holding
company has given the collateral guarantee for the loan taken by its associate company /
Directors & loans / advances granted amounting to Rs. 897.19 Lakhs to group
companies in which directors are interested; the holding company is yet to comply
within the provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

We draw attention to note 32 of the Consolidated financial statements wherein the share
in profit of an Associate company is included in the value of investment and
correspondingly in the Reserves and surplus based on the unaudited financial statement
of the Associate company.

We draw attention to the note 34 of the Consolidated financial statements regarding the
advance made of Rs. 59.16 Lakhs (equivalent Euro — 80,000/-) as share application
money during the year 2015-16, towards acquisition of 51% shares of HPWE GmbH.
Against such payment, share has not been allotted as the company could not make full
payment.

We draw attention to the note 36 of the consolidated financial statements regarding the
provisional attachment of the farm house of the company by The Enforcement
Directorate under The Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002 against which the
company has obtained the stay from the High Court of Delhi.

We draw attention to note 37 regarding The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(“SEBI”) has passed the order dated 29.03.2019 under section 11 and 11B of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,1992. The company has contested the said
order in the Securites Appellant Tribunal vide Appeal No. 179/2019, which has passed
an interim order dated 03.05.2019 for no coercieve action.

We draw attention to note 38 regarding The Adjudicating Officer, Securities and
Exchange Board of India has passed the order dated 10.02.2020 under section 15-I of
The Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992. The company has filed an
appeal against the said order in the Securities Appellant Tribunal.

Our Opinion is not qualified in respect of these matters.




Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as
a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. We have determined that there are no significant matters except for the
matters described in the basis of qualified opinion section and the Emphasis of matter
section, that are required to be disclosed here.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Director’s
Report including its Annexures, but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of
our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard. ‘

Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the -
Companies Act, 2013 that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position,
consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the Group in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of
Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose




of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding
Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible
for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i)
of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the




audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

+ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in
the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For
the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been
audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such
other entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the
independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements / financial information of 2 subsidiaries, whose
financial statements / financial information reflect total assets of Rs 40.80 lakhs as at
31st March, 2020, total revenues of Rs. 6.07 Lakhs for the year ended on that date, as
considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financial statements / financial
information have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us
by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as
it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, and our
report in terms of sub-sections (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it
relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

The consolidated financial statements also includes the unaudited financial statements /
financial information of 2 associates, whose financial statements / financial information




reflect Holding company’s share of profits of Rs. 105.11 lakhs for the year ended on
March 31, 2020.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with
respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that

a) We have sought and except for the matters described in the basis for qualified opinion
paragraph obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements.

b) Except for the possible effects of the matters described in the basis for qualified
opinion paragraph, in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating
to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as
it appears from our examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

¢) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, and the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements

d) Except for the possible effects of the matters described in the basis for qualified opinion
paragraph, in our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements comply with
the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,2015, as amended.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
company as on March 31, 2020 by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company
and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary company, none of the
directors of the Group companies, is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of internal financial control over financial reporting of the
Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
Annexure-A.

g) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
provided to us, the remuneration paid by the company to its directors is in accordance with
the provisions of section 197 of the Act read with Schedule V of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion
and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. the consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on
the consolidated financial position of the Group. Refer note 39 to the consolidated
Financial Statements;




ii. the Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

it. there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, and its subsidiary
companies.

For M. MODI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 319141E

OURAYV MODI
Partner
Membership No. 546137

UDIN : 20546137AAAAAQ3727

Place: New Delhi
Date: July 29, 2020



ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN
DATE ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF TARINI
INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Tarini
International Limited (“the Holding Company”) and its subsidiary companies, as of March
31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended on that date

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies are
responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.




We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on
our audit, the following material weaknesses have been identified as at March 31, 2020:

The Holding Company did not have appropriate internal financial controls over (a)
Assessment of impairment in value of long term equity investment and assessment of
impairment in value of loans and advances to various parties, (b) Control over reconciliation
of Creditors balances or other advances, (¢) Control over the statutory compliances, (d)
Assessment of expected cash requirement for the timely payment of statutory dues such as
Income tax, Service tax, GST, and PF etc.

The inadequate supervisory and review control over Company’s process in respect of
aforesaid assessment in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India could potentially result in a material misstatement in preparation and presentation of
financial statement including the profit/loss after tax.

A ‘material weakness’ is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial
control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material




misstatement of the company's annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented
or detected on a timely basis.

Qualified opinion

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of material weaknesses described in “basis of
qualified opinion™ paragraph above, the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies
have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

We have considered the material weaknesses identified and reported above in determining
the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the Consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on March 31, 2020, and these material
weaknesses have affected our opinion on the Consolidated financial statements of the
Company and we have issued a qualified opinion on the Consolidated financial statements

For M. MODI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 319141E

OURAYV MODI

Partner
Membership No. 546137

UDIN : 20546137AAAAAQ3727

Place: New Delhi
Date: July 29, 2020



TARINI INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
CIN : L74899DL1999PLC097993

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020

Particulars Note As at As at
No. March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
1 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS
Share capital 2 129,980,000 129,980,000
Reserves and surplus 3 160,321,939 151,741,419
Minority Interest - 1,702,495
290,301,939 283,423,914
NON-CURRENT LIABLITIES
Long-term borrowings 4 19,511,860 27,434,140
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 6 936,748 -
Long-term provisions 7 1,414,133 4,283,865
Total non-current liabilities 21,862,741 31,718,005
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Short-term borrowings 5 45,749,293 46,318,157
Other current liabilities 9 31,795,612 38,691,387
Short-term provision 8 8,435,678 10,031,407
Total Current liabilities 85,980,582 95,040,951
TOTAL 398,145,263 410,182,870
I ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 10
- Tangible assets 61,037,208 57,334,523
- Intangible assets 9,474 9,474
- Capital work in progress - 11,784,088
Non-current investments 11 126,370,823 115,712,707
Deferred tax Assct (Net) 6 - 171,947
Long-term loans and advances 12 5,086,293 5,086,293
Other non-current assets 14 29,299,501 29,299,501
Total non-current assets 221,803,299 219,398,533
2. CURRENT ASSETS
Current Investments 17 11,315,147 11,477,819
Trade Receivable 15 45,827,760 49,505,760
Cash and cash equivalents 16 2,259,067 5,515,679
Short-term loans and advances 13 116,939,991 124,285,079
Total current assets 176,341,965 190,784,337
TOTAL 398,145,263 410,182,870

Significant Accounting Policies (Refer Note 1) and various notes on Financial Statements are an integral part
of Financial statements

As per our report of even date attached.

For M. MODI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 319141E

Sourdv Modi
Partner
Membership Number : 546137

Place: New Delhi
Date: July 29. 2020

For and on behalf of the Board
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Director
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TARINI INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
CIN : L74899DL1999PLC097993
Consolidated Statement of profit and loss for the year ended on March 31,2020

Particulars Note For the Year ended For the Year ended
No. March 31.2020 March 31, 2019
Income
Revenue from operations 18 3,600,000 8,595,600
Other income 19 14,168,861 14,497,013
Total revenue 17,768,861 23,092,613
Expenses
Employee benefit expenses 20 8,985,029 11,704,484
Finance costs 21 4,174,357 4,518,566
Depreciation and amortization expense 10 1,717,885 1,609,859
Other expenses 22 4,890,505 12,001,714
Total expenses 19,767,777 29,834,623
Profit/ (Loss) before taxation (1,998,916) (6,742,010)
Tax expense:
(1) Current year 883,236 619,800
(3) Deferred tax 1,108,694 (381,261)
Total tax expenses 1,991,930 238,539
Net profit for the year (3,990,845) (6,980,549)
Share of profit/(loss) of associates 10,511,096 -
Net Profit after Minority interest & Share of Profit from Associates 6,520,251 (6,980,549)
Earning per Equity Share of Rs 10 each
Basic and Diluted (Rupees) 23 0.53 -0.01

Significant Accounting Policies (Refer Note 1) and various notes on Financial Statements are an integral part of

Financial statements

As per our report of even date attached.

For and on behalf of the Board

For M. MODI & ASSOCIATES Y.« &WM A/\M ,
Chartered Accountants « —_— -

Firm Registration No. 319141E

Soura¥ Modi
Partner
Membership Number : 546137

Place: New Delhi
Date: July 29, 2020

V Chandrashekhar
Director
DIN - 00073657
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A. C. Jain
C.F.O.

V, Anu Naidu
Director
DIN - 0073661
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TARINI INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
CIN : L74899DL.1999PLC097993
Consolidated Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2020

Particulars As at As at
March 31 2020 March 31,2019
A. Cash flow from Operating Activities
Profit Before Tax (1,998,916) (6,742,010)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 1,717,885 1,609,859
Interest expenses 2,770,225 3,607,630
Interest income (10,980,193) (12,868,367)
Operating profit before working capital changes (8,490,998) (14,392,888)
Working Capital Changes
Decrease/(Increase) in current assets 5,865,087 (17,837,413)
Increase/(Decrease) in current liabilities (5,013,698) 39,491,008
Cash flow from Operating Activities (A) (7,639,609) 7,260,707
B. Cash flow from Investing Activities
(Purchase)/Sale of fixed assets 6,457,784 2,277,073
Investment purchase (147,019) 278,406
Capital expenditure - (620,000)
Interest income 10,980,193 12,868,367
Cash flow from Investing Activities (B) 17,290,958 14,803,846
C. Cash flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds/(Repayment) of secured Loan (10,495,149) (14,259,567)
Interest expenses (2,770,225) (3,607,630)
Cash flow from Financing Activities (C) (13,265,374) (17,867,197)
Net Increase In Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) (3.614.025) 4,197.356
Opening cash & cash equivalents 5,515,679 1,318,323
Closing cash & cash equivalents 2,259,067 5,515,679

Note:

1. The Cash flow statement is preared under ' indirect method ' as set out in Accounting Standard -3 on Cash flow
statemnets as specified in the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006. .

2. Cash & Cash equivalents represents:

-Cash on hand

-Balance with Scheduled bank in Current accounts

Total

1,977,277 1,135,463
281,790 4,380,216
2,259,067 5,515,679
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TARINI INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Note 1 -Significant Accounting Policies and Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

L

Principles of Consolidation

1 The Consolidated Financial Statements (CFS) relates to Tarini International Limited ( the company ) and its majority owned and

11

wholly owned subsidiary companies. The Consolidated Financial statements have been prepared on the following basis:-

i) The Financial Statements of the Company and its subsidiary companies have been combined on line-by-line basis by adding
together the book values of tike items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after fully eliminating intra-group balance and
intra-group transaction resulting in unrealised profits or losses as per Accounting Standard 21-"Consolidated Financial
Statements".

ii) The excess of the cost of the company of its investment in the subsidiary, over its share of equity at the dates on which the
investment in the subsidiary is made, is recognized as 'Goodwill' being an asset In consolidated Financial Statements. The excess
of company's share of equity in the subsidiary as at the date of its investments is treated as Capital Reserve.

iif) Minority interest in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries consists of the amount of equity attributable to minority
shareholders at the date on which investments are made by the Company in the subsidiary companies and further movement in
their share in the equity, subsequent to the dates of investments as stated above. Losses applicable to the minority, are adjusted
against the majority interest because minority has no binding obligation to make good the losses. However, if the subsidiary
subsequently reports profits, all such profits are allocated to the majority interest until the minority’s share of losses previously
absorbed by the majority has been recovered. :

iv) In case of Associate where the company directly or indirectly through subsidiary holds 20% or more of the equity, it is
presumed that the investor has significant influence, unless it can be clearly demonstrated that this is not the case. Investments in
assoicates are accounted for using equity method in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS-23)" Accounting of Investments
in Associates in Consolidated Financial Statement" issued by the Institute of Chatered Accountants of India.

v) The Company accounts for its share in the change in the net assets of the associates, post acquisition, after elimination
urealized profit and losses resulting from transaction between the company and its associates to extent of its share, through its
profit and loss account to extent such change is attributable to associates' profit and loss account and through its reserve for the
balance . based on the available information.

vi) As far as possible, the Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions
and other events in same manner as the Company's separate financial statements.

viii) Investments other than in subsidiaries and associates have been accounted for as per Accounting Standard 13 (AS-13)
"Accounting for [nvestments" issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to these consolidated financial statements are intended to serve as a means of
informative disclosure and guide to better understanding of the consolidated position of the Company. Recognising this
purpose,only such policies and notes from the individual financial statements, which fairly present the needed disclosures have
been disclosed, lack of homogeneity and other similer considerations made it desirable to exclude some of them, which in the
opinion of the mangement, could be better viewed, when referred from the individual financial statements.

Significant accounting policies

Basis of accounting and preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on an accrual basis in accordance
with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (Indian GAAP) and accounting standards specified under section 133 read with
Rule 7 of Company Account Rule, 2014 and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The accounting policies have
been consistently applied by the company and are consistent with those used in the previous year.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the balances of assets and liabilities and disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as at
the reporting date of the Consolidated Financial Statements and amounts of income and expenses during the period of account.
Examples of such estimates include provision for doubtful debts, income taxes and future obligations under employee retirement
benefit plans. Management periodically assesses whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired and makes
provision in the accounts for any impairment losses estimated. Contingencies are recorded when it is probable that a liability will
be incurred, and the amount can be reasonably estimated. Actual results could differ from those estimates.




Property, plant and equipment

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and
any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Borrowing costs relating to acquisition of
fixed assets during construction period included to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready to be put to use.

Depreciation / Amortisation
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided to the extent of depreciable amount on Straight Line method (SLM) at

the rates and in the manner prescribed in Schedule If to the Companies Act, 2013 over their useful life. In respect of the additions
made or assets sold / discarded during the year, prorata depreciation has been provided.

Impairment of assets

The carrying value of assets at each balance sheet date are reviewed for impairment. If any indication of the impairment exist, the
recoverable amount of such assets is estimated and impairment is recognised, if the carrying amount of these assets exist their
recoverable amount. the recoverable amount is the greater of net selling prince and their value in use. Value in use is arrived at
by discounting the future cash flow to their present value based on the appropriate discount factor. When there is indication that
an impairment loss recognised for an asset in earlier accounting period no longer exists or may have decreased, such reversal of
impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss account.

Investments

Investments that are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than a year are classified as "Current investments".
All other investments are classified as "Long-term investments". Current investments are carried at lower of cost and fair value.
Long-term investments are carried at cost less provision for diminution other than temporary in value of such investments.
Dividend Income is accounted when the right to receive dividend is established.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition and construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of cost of such
assets till such time the asset is ready for its intended use. A qualifying asset is one that requires substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as period costs.

Contingent Liability & Provisions

A provision is recognized when there is a present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not
discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet
date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent liability is disclosed for

a) Possible obligation which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the

Company or

b) Present obligations arising from the past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

c) Contingent Assets are not recognized in the Consolidated Financial Statements since this may result in the recognition of
income that may never be realized.

Foreign Currency transactions

Initial Recognition

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange
rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Conversion

All loans and deferred credits repayable in foreign currency and outstanding at the close of the year are expressed in Indian
currency at the date prevailing at the balance sheet date.

Exchange Differences

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting of such monetary items at rates different from
those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in previous Consolidated Financial Statements, are
recognized as income or as expenses in the year in which they arise.




Retirement and other employee bencfits
Employee benefit include Provident fund, Gratuity fund and compensated absences

1) Defined contribution plans - The contribution to the Provident fund is considered as defined contribution and is charged as
an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made.

ii) Defined benefit Plans - For defined benefit plans in the form of gratuity fund, the cost of providing benefits is determined on
the basis of airthemetic calculations at each balance sheet date.

iii) Short-term employee benefits - The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange
for the services rendered by employees are recognised during the period when employee render the service. These benefits
include performence incentive and compensated absences which are expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the
period in which the employee renders the related service. The cost of short term compensated absences is accounted, in case of
non accumulating compensated absences, when the absence occur.

Revenue recognition

Revenue has been recognized in accordance with Accounting Standard-9 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

Leases

a) Finance Lease

Leases which effectively transfer to the Company all risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item are classified as
Finance Lease. Lease rentals are capitalized at the lower of the fair value and present value of the minimum lease payments at the
inception of the lease term and disclosed as leased assets. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and
reduction of the lease liability based on the implicit rate of return.

b) Operating Lease

Lease where the lesser effectively retains substantially all risks and benefits of the asset are classified as

Operating lease. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the Profit & Loss account on a Straight Line Basis
over the Lease term.

Earnings per share

In arriving at the EPS, the Company’s net profit/ loss after tax, computed in terms of the Indian GAAP, is divided by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding on the last day of the reporting period. The EPS thus arrived at is known
as “Basic EPS". To arrive at the diluted EPS. the net profit / loss after tax, referred above and the weighted average number of
equity shares, as computed above and the weighted average number of equity shares that would have been issued on conversion
of shares having potential dilutive effect subject to the terms of issue of those potential shares. The dates’ of issue of such
potential shares determine the amount of the weighted average number of potential equity shares.

In the event of issue of bonus shares, or share split the number of equity shares outstanding is increased without an increase in the
resources. The number of Equity shares outstanding before the event is adjusted for the proportionate change in the number of
equity shares outstanding as if the event had occurred at the beginning of the earliest period reported.

Income taxes

Current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year. A provision is made for income
tax annually based on the tax liability computed, after taking into consideration of tax allowances and exemptions. Provisions are
recorded when it is estimated that a liability due to disallowances or other matters are probable.

As per Accounting Standard 22 issued by Institute of Chartered Accountant of India, deferred tax liability / assets is recognized
subject to prudence. on timing differences, being reversal in one or more subsequent periods. Deferred tax asset are recognized
only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets can be realized in future. However, where there is unabsorbed
depreciation or carried forward of losses, deferred tax assets are recognized only is a virtual certainty of realization of such asset.




TARINI INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes on Financial Statements

NOTE 2 - SHARE CAPITAL

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Authorised
1,35,00,000 (Previous year- 1,35,00,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 135,000,000 135,000,000
Total
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
12,998,000 (Previous year- 9,020,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid 129,980,000 129,980,000
Total 129,980,000 129,980,000
Equity Shares
As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Number of outstanding shares at the beginning of the year 12,998,000 12,998,000
Number ot outstanding shares at the end of the year 12,998,000 12,998,000
The details of shareholders holding more than 5 percent shares:-
Name of the Shareholder As “;g;;“" 31, AsatMarch31, 4 . March31,2020  As at March 31,2019
Percentage held Percentage held No. of Shares No. of Shares
Mr. Vakamulla Chandrashekhar 53.99 53.99 7,018,281 7,018,281
Mrs. Anu Naidu 15.40 15.40 2,001,565 2,001,565
M/s Guiness Corporate Advisors Pvt Ltd (Merchant 9.03 9.03 1,174,000 1,174,000
NOTE 3 - RESERVES AND SURPLUS
As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Capital Reserve on account of consolidation
General Reserve as per consolidation - (4,953,076)
Profit and loss as per consolidation - (5,846,068)
Capital Reserve as per consolidation - 5,160,435
- (5,638,709)
Securities Premium Account;
As per last Balance Sheet 135,449,314
135,449,314 135,449,314
General Reserve:
As per last Balance Sheet 21,930,814 28,911,364
Add: Transterred from Profit & loss 6,520,251 (6,980,550)
Less: adjustment/losses of Minority shares* (3,578,439) -
24,872,625 21,930,814
Profit & Loss:
Net profit after tax during the period 6,520,251 (6,980,550)
Less:
Transfer to general reserve (6,520,251) 6,980,550
160,321,939 151,741,419

#Loss applicable to the minority exceeding to the minority interest in equity of subsidiary has been adjusted with the consolidated reserves, which was
carlier offset with capital reserve ’




Notes on Financial Statements

NOTE 4 - LONG TERM BORROWINGS

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Secured
Term loans
- From banks 21,129,678 29,104,923
- From others - -
21,129,678 29,104,923
Unsecured
Loans and advances from related parties 2,605,000 5,136,153
Others 250,000 250,000
2,855,000 5,386,153
Less:- - Current maturities of long term debts 4,472,818 7,056,936
Total 19,511,860 27,434,140
From Banks
_Lo:m (Rs Security Interest Repayment Terms
in Lacs)
57.97 [1CICI Bank Limited - Secured by F-33, Il nd Floor | 1-Base(8.75%)+ 3.25% Repayable in monthly instalments of Rs. 2,58,248 for 120 months starting

. Block-F. East of kailash, New Delhi

=12% p.a. payable

from 10.05.2011

111.18 | Karur Vysya Bank Ltd -OD a/c converted to Loan

on 18/01/2018

2.45% over & above the
MCL Rate of the bank as
applicable. Effective ROIT
for the year 11.45% p.a

Repayable in monthly instalments of Rs 3,21,159 for 84 months starting from

Feb 2018

42 15 | ICICI Bank Limited- Secured by F-33. 1I nd Floor,

Block- F, East of Kailash, New Delhi

10.75% p.a payable

Repayable in monthly instalments of Rs 81,804 for 120 months starting from

05.12.2015

NOTE 5 - SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

As at March 31, 2020

As at March 31,2019

Secured
Term loans
- From banks

Unsecured
Loans and advances trom related parties

129,357,177

124,605,368

129,357,177 124,605,368
Lessi- - Inter-company debts 83,607,884 78287211
Total 45,749,293 46,318,157
NOTE 6 - DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)
As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019-
a) Deferred tax assets
- Employee benefits 392,442 1,209,893
- Provision disallowed 1,481,153 147,393
Total 1,873,596 1,357,286
b) Deferred tax liabilities
- Depreciation 2,810,343 1,185,340
Total 2,810,343 1,185,340
Net deferred tax liability 936,747 -171,946
NOTE 7 - LONG - TERM PROVISIONS
As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31,2019
Provision for Employee Benefits
- Gratuity 1,213,581 3,725,541
- Leave 200,552 558,324
Total 1,414,133 4,283,865




Notes on Financial Statements

NOTE 8 - SHORT - TERM PROVISIONS

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Provision for Employee Benefits
- Gratuity 95,261 414,749
Others
- Taxation 8,340,417 9,616,658
Total 8,435,678 10,031,407
NOTE 9 - OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
- Current maturities of long term debts 4,472,818 7,056,936
- Taxes and other statutory dues 10,010,600 8,621,119
- Employee dues 5,620,932 5,609,247
- Others' 11,691,262 17,404,084
Total 31,795,612 38,691,387
' Others include non trade paybles
NOTE 11 - NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS
As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Long Term Investments
Unquoted
Non - Trade
Tarini Suger & Distillaries Limited (Subsidiary)
535,900 (Previous year - 535,900) Equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid-up
Venture Infrastructure Limited (Subsidiary)
680,000 (Previous year - 680,000) Equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid-up
Tarini Infrastructure Limited (Associated) 115,410,096 104,899,000
84,36,000 (Previous year- 84,36,000) Equity shares of Rs10 each,fully paid-up
10,26,950 (Previous year- 10,26,950) Equity shares of Rs10 each,fully paid-up at
premium of Rs. 10 per share
B.Soilimec (India) Private Limited (Associated) 300,000 300,000
30.000 (Previous year- 30,000) Equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid-up
Tarini Lifesciences Limited (Associated) 167,000 167,000
16,700 (Previous year- 16,700) Equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid-up
Share application money
Venture Energy & Technologies Limited* 9,650,000 9,650,000
Fixed deposit** 843,726 696,707
126,370,822 115,712,707

* Allotment is pending at the end f investee company as their matter of revival of project is subjudice before the High Court of Himachal Pradesh.
#* fixed deposit against loan with the bank having maturity date beyond 12 months.
- Aggregate amount of unquoted investments - Rs. 1,17,525,000 (Previous year - Rs. 1,17,525,000)

NOTE 12 - LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
(unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Security deposits 1,637,580 1,637,580
- Unsecured - considered good 3,448,713 3,448,713
Total 5,086,293 5,086,293
NOTE 13 - SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
(unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Loan and advances to related parties 128,962,345 127,034,101
Asset held for sale - 660,706
- Advance tax (net of not current provision of taxes) 9,268,788 11,070,771
- Dues from employees 596,050 707,025
- Unsecured - considered good 61,720,692 63,099,687
200,547,875 202,572,290
Less:- Inter company debts 83,607,884 78287211
Total 116,939,991 124,285,079
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Notes on Financial Statements

NOTE 14 - OTHER NON - CURRENT ASSETS

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Deferred expenses 902,199 902,199
Preoperative expenses (net of preoperative income) 22,280,358 22,280,358
Advance against allotment of shares 5,916,000 5,916,000
Preliminary expenses 200,944 200,944
Total 29,299,501 29,299,501
NOTE 15 - TRADE RECEIVABLE
As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
(Unsecured, considered good)
More than six month (aggregare amount of trade receivables outstanding for a 44,027,760 47,145,760
period exceedmg six months from the date they are due for pavment)
Less than six month (wgeregate amount of trade receivables outstanding for a 1,800,000 2,360,000
period exceeding six months from the date they are due for payment)
Total 45,827,760 49,505,760
NOTE 16- CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
As at March 31,2020 As at March 31, 2019
Cash on hand 1,977,277 1,135,463
Balances with scheduled banks 281,790 4,380,216
Total 2,259,067 5,515,679
NOTE 17 - CURRENT INVESTMENTS
As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
FDR with Kisan Nagari Sahakari Bank 10,000,000 10,162,672
Equator Financial Services Limited 1,315,147 1,315,147
Total 11,315,147 11,477,819

«




NOTE 18 - REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Income from contract

Total

3,600,000

8,595,600

3,600,000

8,595,600

NOTE 19 - OTHER INCOME

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Interest income

Agricultural income

Rental Income

Profit on sale of property
Excess provision written off
Other income

Total

5,002,355 12,868,367

- 719,000

- 333,400
6457784 -
2614590 -

94,132 576,246

14,168,861 14,497,013

NOTE 20 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Salaries , wages etc

Contribution to provident fund and other funds

Staff welfare expenses

Total

8,948,214 10,991,417
- 696,396
36,815 16,671
8,985,029 11,704,484

Note: The contributions payable to provident fund by the Company are at rates specified in the the provident fund

scheme.

NOTE 21- FINANCE COST

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Interest expense 2,770,225 3,607,630

Interest on delay payment of taxes 1,396,796 877,578

Bank charges 7,336 33,357

Total 4,174,357 4,518,565
< <




NOTE 22 - OTHER EXPENSES

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Power and fuel.

Repair and maintenance

Travelling and conveyance expenses
Printing, stationary and courier charges
Telephone & internet expenses

Legal and professional charges

Insurance
Fee and filing

Auditors' remuneration

- Audit fee
- Tax Audit fee

Agricultural expenses

Interest on loan
Rates and taxes

Loss on sale of asset
Miscellaneous expenses

NOTE 23 - EARNING PER SHARE

374,779 443,193
244,371 84,185
953,296 368,913
126,160 16,738
142,095 140,381

1,492,650 1,106,500

33,366 2,844
383,891 280,700
241,250 241,250
110,000 35,000
443,932 379,806

; 7,556,090

8,610 21,525

; 792,238
336,106 532,350
4,890,505 12,001,713

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Profit / (Loss) after tax as per profit and loss account (Rs.)

Weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding
(Nos.)
Earnings per share - basic / diluted (face value - Rs. 10 per
share) (Rs.)

6,520,251
12,335,000

0.53

¥

(135,075)
12,335,000

(0.01)



ADDITIONAL NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

24 Subsequent to the outbreak of Coronavirus (COVID-19), consequential lock down across the country, disruptions to businesses worlwode and
economic slowdown may have its eventual impact on Company. A definitive assessment of the impact is not possible in view of the highly
uncertain economic environment and the scenario is still evolving. The Company has evaluated its liquidity position and of recoverability and
carrying values of its assets and have concluded that no material adjustments required at this stage in the financial statements.

25 In the opinion of the management the balances shown under receivables, loans and advances and other assets whether current or non current,
have approximately the same realizable value as shown in the accounts. However these balance are subject to confirmation.

26 The Management is of the opinion that as at the end of the reporting period, there are no indications of a material impairment in the value of
fixed assets. Hence. the need to provide for an impairment loss does not arise.

27 There is no separate reportable segment in accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standard 17 'Segment Reporting' issued by the
Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 in view of company's activities during the year are in one segment. The company is not operating
in any of the geographical segment.

28 The company has not received any information from suppliers / creditors regarding their status under Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises
development Act. 2006,

™
=)

During the year 2011-2012, the company has provided its immovable property as equitable mortgage towards the term loan taken by the other
associate company in which the company is holding shares more than 10% and the personal loan taken by its director.The necessary filing with
regard to approval from Central Government and certain compliances according to the provisions of the Companies Act are pending.
However.the terms and condition of said term/personal loan taken by the other associate company / founder directors, in view of the
management. are not prejudicial to the interest of the company.

30 During the vear ended 31 March 2015, a survey was conducted under Section 133A of the Income Tax Act, 1961 by the Income Tax
Authorities in the Company's premises and certain documents were impounded. The Income Tax Authorities were pursuing for centralisation of
the tax proceedings with another party. The company protested and The Hon'ble Supreme Court dismissed the petition of Income Tax
Department. The documents so impounded are yet to be released by the Income Tax Department.

31 A Subsidiary company has entered into joint venture aggreement with M/s Cobra Instalaciones Y servicos S.A. a company incorporated under
the law of spain to design, manufacture supply. Installation & commissioning of 2x60mva 132/33KV substation at Osoglo, Nigeria. The work at
this project is yet 1o be commenced. The expenditure incurred to obtain such project has been accounted and kept under deferred expenses. There
is no expenditure incurred during the year.

32 As per the provision of section 129 of the companies Act ,2013( the "Act"), Company is required to consolidate financial statements of its
subsidiary companies and associate companies with its financial statements. Accordingly Company has consolidated the financial statement of all
its subsidiary and associate companies, as per the provisions of i dards issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

33 (i) The list of subsidiary companies which are included in the consolidation and the company's holdings therein are as under:

Naime of Subsidiaries ] Owuership in % (iii) Associated company not included in consolidation
Subsidiaries through direct control [ 2014-15 Name of the company Share of Interest
(a) Venture Infrastructure Limited 68% (a) Tarini Lifescience Limited 33.40%

(b) Tarini Sugar & Distillaries Limited 64.57% {b) B.soilmec India Private Limited 5.38%

(ii) Associated company included in consolidation

IName of the company Share oflmerestl

I(a) Tarini Infrastructure Limited 34.99% |

34 Pursuant to the Share Acquisition agreement between Hydro Power & Holding Experts GmbH (herein after referred as HPWE) 51% shares of
HPWE was to acquire by the company and accordingly part payment of Euro 80,000 (equivalent to INR 59.16 Lakhs) has been made during the
year 201415, Due to bad economic situation, shares has not been allotted against share application money and the said money stands as advance
as on March 31, 2020

[
o

The accumulated losses of two subsidiaries have eroded its net worth as at March 31,2020. The management of the subsidiaries are confident of
improvement in the company's future operations and the financial statement have been prepared on going concern basis. The company is of view
that the investment in the company amounting to Rs.121.59 lakhs is a long term investment and no provision for diminution in the value of
investment is necessary.

36 During the month of October, 2017. The Enforcement Directorate has passed an order for provisional attachment of the farm house of the company for 180
days under The Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002. However, the matter is pending before Adjucating Authority of Enforcement Directorate. The
Hon'ble High Court has stayed the provisional attachment order passed by Enforcement Directorate vide its order dated March 06, 2018.

37 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) has passed the order dated 29.03.2019 under section 11 and 11B of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act,1992. The company has contested the said order in the Securites Appellant Tribunal vide Appeal No. 179/2019,
which has passed an interim order dated 03.05.2019 for no coercieve action.

38 The Adjudicating Officer, Securities and Exchange Board of India (“AO-SEBI”) has passed the order dated 10.02.2020 under section 15-I of
The Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992. The company has filed an appeal against the said order in the Securities Appeilant
Tribunal.

39 Contingent Libility not provided for Amount (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
1) Income tax demand under Appeal 63.96 63.96
2) Against loan availed by a group company and promoter directors on equitable 490.72 398.19
montgage of property of the company (value of property mortgaged is considered)




40 a) Employee Benefit Plan

Particulars

For the year ended March 31, 2020

For the year ended March 31, 2019

Gratuity Earned leaves Gratuity Earned leaves

Unfunded Unfunded Unfunded Unfunded
1. Change in the present value of obligation during the
year
Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the year 4,140,290 558,324 3,775,640 318,324
Interest cost 279,884 - 244,745 -
Current service cost 213,061 299,668
Benefits paid - - - -
Acturial (gain)/loss on obligation (3,324,393) (357,772) (179,763) 240,000
Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 1,308,842 200,552 4,140,290 558,324
2. Net assets (liability) recognised in the balance sheet
present value of Defined benefit obligation 1,308,842 200,552 4,140,290 558,324
Fair value of plan assets - - - -
Net assets/(liabilities) (1,308.842) (200,552) (4,140,290) (558,324)
Further classification
Long-term provisions 1,213,581 200,552 3,725,541 558,324
Short-term provisions 95,261 - 414,749 -
Other current liabilities - - - -
Other current assets - - - -
3. Expense recognised in Profit and Loss account
Current service cost 213,061 - 299,668 -
Interest cost ) 279,884 - 244,745 -
Net acturial (gain) loss recognised in the year (3,324,393) (357,772) (179,763) -
Reversal of gratuity taken on arithmetical basis - - - -
Total expenses (2,831,448) (357,772) 364,650 -
4. Assumption
i) Discounted rate 8 - 8 -
ii) Salary escalation rate 6 - 6 -
b) Demographic Assumption
i) Retirement Age (Years) 60 - 60 -

ii) Mortality Table
iii) Ages (Withdrawal Rate (%))
Upto to 30 years
From 31 to 44 years
Above 44 Years

IALM (2012-14)

3.00
2.00
1.00

IALM (2006-08)

3.00
2.00

1.00

b) In accordance with the payments of Gratuity Act, 1972 the company provides for the gratuity covering eligible employees. The liability on
account of gratuity is covered on the basis of valuation of the liabilities by an independent actuary as at the Year end.

¢) The company makes contribution to Provident Fund, which are defined contribution plans, for qualifying employees. Under the schemes,
the company is required to contribution a specified percentage of the payroll cost to fund the benefits. The Company recongnised Rs.
2.07.365/- (previous year Rs. 3,31.746/-) for Provident Fund Contributions,in the statement of Profit and Loss. The contribution payable to
these plan by the company are at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.




4t Related Party Disclosures:
(a) Key Management Personnel -

1Y Vakamulla Chandrashekhar - Managing Director, 3) A. C. Jain - Chief Financial officer
2) V. Anu Naidu - Director 4) Amit Arora - Company Secretary

(b) Subsidiaries -
1) M/s Tarini Sugar & Distillaries Limited 2) M/s Venture Infrastructure Limited

(c) Enterprises over which directors exercise significant influence / control
1) M/s Tarini Infrastructure Limited. 5) M/s Venture Energy & Technology Limited.
2) M/s B.Sotlmec India Private Limited. 6) M/s Tarini Life Scienses Limited
3) M/s Tarini Humanitarian Demining and Rehabilition Works ~ 7) M/s Tarini Wilderness & Innovations Private Limited
4) M/s Tarini Overseas Mining and Operation Limited.

Amount (Rs.)
td) Particulars As at March 31, | As at March
2020 31,2019

Maintainence Income
Tarim Infrastructre Limited 883,236 619,800
Interest Income
Tarini Sugars & Distilleries Limited 5,925,957 6,800,481
Venture Energy & Technologies Limited 1,044,053 1,223,183
B.Soilmec India Private Limited 2,102,747 2,205,257
Tarint Infrastructre Limited 756,000 756,000
Directors' Remuneration
V. Anu Naidu 1,200,000 1,200,000
Unsecured Borrowing Repaid/(Loans and Advances received back)
Tarini Overseas Mining and Operations Limited. - 57,060
V. Anu Naidu 2,223,964 7,637,655
V. Chandrashekhar 823,147 -
Tarint Lifesciences Limited 2,050 63,990
Tarini Sugars & Distilleries Limited (7,231,623) {489,385)
Tarini Wilderness & Innovation Private Limited (295,396) (3,224,441)
(Unsecured borrowings received)/Loans and advances given
B.Soilmec India Private Limited 647,507 61,200
Venlture Energy & Technologies Limited - (6,675)
Tarini Humanitarian Demining and Rehabilitation Works - 15170
Tarim Sugars & Distilleries Limited - 40,000
V. Chandrashekhar - 345,282
Venture Infrastructure Ltd. - 315,243
Venture Infrastructure Ltd.
Closing Balance at the year end.
Receivable/ (Pavable)
Vakamulla Chandrashekhar (3,113,879) (3,937,025)
V. Anu Naidu (7,097,735) {4,758,936)
Tarini Intrastructure Limited current A/c (27,513,119) (22,875,494)
Tarini Infrastructure Limited Loan A/c 7,000,000 7,000,000
Venture Infrastructure Limited 16,843,440 16,843,440
B.Soilmec India Private Limited 24,852,519 22,102,265
Tarini Sugars & Distilleries Limited 66,764,445 68,070,110
Tarini Overseas Mining and Operations Limited. (305,401) (305,401)
Venture Energy & Technologies Limited 13,303,089 12,259,035
Tarini Wilderness & Innovation Private Limited 184,584 479,980
Tarini Lifesciences Limited (217,138) (219,188)
Tarini Humanitarian Demining and Rehabilitation Works 14,270 14,270

42 Figures pertaining (o the subsidiary companies have been reclassified wherever necessary to bring them in line with the company's financial
statements.

For M. MODI & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
FirpeRegistration No. 319141E

For an cn behalf of the Board

V. Anu Naidu

Sourfiv Modi
Partner
Membership Number : 546137
Place: New Delhi

Date: July 29, 2020

Conffany Secretary




STATEMENT PURSUANT TO FIRST PROVISO TO SUB-SECTION (3) OF SECTION
129 READ WITH RULE 5 OF COMPANIES ACCOUNT RULES, 2014 RELATING TO

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

NAME OF THE SUBSIDIARY

VENTURE

JINFRASTRUCTURE

LIMITED

ITARINI

SUGAR AND
DISTILLARIES
LIMITED

NUMBEROF SHARES HELD IN
THE SUBSIDIRY COMPANY

680,000,Equity shares of
Rs. 10 each, fully paid-up

535,900, Equity shares of
Rs. 10 each, fully paid-up |

PERCENTAGE OF HOLDING IN
THE SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

68.00%

64.57%

Whole Time Dirsctor

DIN 006753651

FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED March 31,2020 March 31,2020
REPORTING CURRENCY Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.
SHARE CAPITAL 10,000,000 8,300,000
RESERVE & SURPLUS (10,984,860) (19,165,182)
TOTAL ASSETS 21,852,473 73,119,771
TOTAL LIABILITIES 21,852,473 73,119,771
INVESTMENT - 11,477,819 |
TURNOVER (INCLUDING OTHER - 606,558
INCOME) '
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (62,578) (6,034,708)
{PROVISION FOR TAXATION - -
PROFIT AFTER TAXATION (62,578) (6,034,708)
PROPOSED DIVIDEND - -
I

Vakamulla Chandrashekhar V. Anu Naidu A. C Jain AWl Arora

Company Secretary



TARINI INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(CIN : L74899DL1999PLC097993)
Registered Office: D-2, 1% Floor, Amar Colony, Lajpat Nagar — 1V, New Delhi - 110024
Email: headoffice@tariniinfra.com Website: www.tariniindia.com
Phone: 011-26479995/26285364, Fax: 011-26477996

ATTENDANCE SLIP
21 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Reg.Folio / DP ID &Client iD. No. of Shares

| certify that | am a registered Shareholder/Proxy for the registered shareholder of the
Company. | hereby record my presence at the 21% Annual General Meeting of the
Company at the Registered Office of the Company at D-2, 1* Floor, Amar Colony, Lajpat
Nagar — 1V, New Delhi - 110024 at 11:00 AM on Wednesday, the 30" September, 2020

Members Name

Proxy(é) Name Members/Proxys Signature

Note: 1. please fill this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the Hall.
2. Members/Proxy Holders/Authorised Representatives are requested to show
their Photo ID Proof for attending the Meeting.
3. Authorized Representatives of Corporate members shall produce proper
authorization issued in their favour.
4. Pursuant to the prohibition imposed vide section 118 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with secretarial standard on General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India, no gifts/coupons shall be distributed at
the Meeting. C



FORM NO. MGT - 11
TARIN! INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(CIN : L74899DL1999PLC097993)
Registered Office: D-2, 1% Floor, Amar Colony, Lajpat Nagar — IV, New Delhi - 110024
Email: headoffice@tariniinfra.com Website: www.tariniindia.com
Phone: 011-26479995/26285364, Fax: 011-26477996

PROXY FORM
Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(2) of the
Companies (Management and Administration)Rules 2014

Name of the member(s):

Registered Address

Email ID

I"We

, being the member(s), holding

Folio No/Client ID

DPID

shares of the above

named company, hereby appoint
1. Name Address -—-
Email Signature
---or failing him
2. Name Address
———————— Email Signature
----or failing him
3. Name Address
-------- Email Signature
as my/our proxy to attend and vote(on a poil) for me/us and on my/our behalf at
the 21% Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on the 30™
September, 2020 at 11.00 A.M at D-2, 1* Floor, Amar Colony, Lajpat Nagar — IV,
New Delhi - 110024 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such
resolutions as are indicated below:
Resclution No. 1----- 2 3 --
Signed this day of---—==m-mmmmmmmoee- 2020 N
Signature of Shareholder- . Affix 1 Res
Signature of Proxy Holder(s)--- Revenue
Stamp

ned by
of the
s signed




